
HISTORY OF BRIAN WAITKUS OBJECTIONS/COMPLAINTS TO PERMITS 
 
Exhibit 
No. 

Permit Number Date Comments 

298C-A5 Permit for Pilot Peak Land and Livestock 
Company, Inc., (Etchepare) Acreage Purchased in 
1994. 

1 298C-A5 (TFN 3 4/70) 3/31/1997 Filed complaint with other neighbors 
2 298C-A5 (TFN 3 4/70) 5/9/1997 Rock Springs Hearing before EQC 

Waitkus Testimony 
3 298C-A5 (TFN 3 4/70) 8/22/1997 Order of EQC following hearing  
298C-A6 Petition to change order of mining as specified in 

A5; allow use of Howe Lane to mine out of Section 
36. 

4 298C-A6 (TFN 4 3/119) 12/3/2003 Objection to mining sequence changes to Area 6 
and 7. 

5 298C-A6 (TFN 4 3/119) 1/11/2004 Agreement to mine out Areas around his house.  
No mining in Area S-1. 

TFN 4 6/282 Blasting Complaint made by Waitkus followed by 
Permit Revision to Sec. 36 Area C mining. 

6  4/17/2006 Blasting complaint Waitkus 
7  5/18-2006 NOV 3870-06 Issued as a result of Waitkus 

complaint 
8 TFN 4 6/282 5/3/2006 Changes to blasting plan to address Waitkus 

initiated NOV. [Weather & three day inquiry to 
NWS before blasting.]  

298C-A6 (TFN 4 4/296) Mine Sequence Revisions 
9 298C-A6 (TFN 4 4/296) 9/6/2006 Objection 
10 298C-A6 (TFN 4 4/296) 10/16/2006 Stipulated Resolution to Objections  
11 298C-A6 (TFN 4 4/296) 12/1/2006 DEQ approval to “Change No. 26” 
298C-A7 (TFN 4 2/220) Permit expansion for Section 36. 
12 298C-A7 (TFN 4 2/220) 10/4/2007 Waitkus comments to the Permit App. 
13 298C-A7 (TFN 4 2/220)  Hearing Decision 
14 298C-A7 (TFN 4 2/220) 1/24/2008 MCC’s permit revisions requested by EQC 
 
Exhibit  
No. 

NOV Number Date Comment 

A 3488-033514-03 3/26/2005 Waitkus trespassed and observed a breach in 
MCC’s sediment control device which he reported 
to DEQ resulting in NOV and a Settlement.  

(6 & 7) 3870-06 4-17-2006 Waitkus files complaint on blasting resulting in 
NOV and Permit Modification. [I-66] 

B  11/15/2006 Waitkus files complaint on quarry fuel storage 
facility.  [I-74]  Results in DEQ investigation, 
report and permit modification. 

C TFN 4 6/319 2-8-2007 MCC modified its permit, Change No. 28 to 
address the complaint/NOV. 
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THESTATE • OF WYOMING 

HERSCHLER BUILDING, ROOM 1714 
122 WEST 25TH STREET 

CHEYENNE, WYOMING 82002 
TEL: 307-7n-7170 
FAX: 307-n7-6363 

April 1 , 1997 

CERTIFIED MAIL #93631 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Brian R. Waitkus 
Box 1411 
Laramie. WY 82070 

RE: Mountain Cement Company, TFN 3 4/70, Docket No. 2826-97 

Dear Mr. Waitkus : 

JIM GERINGER 
GOVERNOR 

The Departme nt. of Environm e nta l Quality (DEQ) has forward ed your 
obj ection to th e application of Mountain Cement Co., Docket No. 2826-97, 
for a mining permit to the Enviro nmental Quality Council (the Council). As 
provided for in the Environmcn la l Quality Act, the Council wil l set a time 
a nd place for a h earing on yo ur obj ection. This h earing will be conducted 
pursuant to th e prov is io ns o f th e Environm e ntal Quality Ac t . th e 
Administrative Procedures /\c t. a nd th e DEQ Rules of Prac ti ce a nd 
Procedure . The hearing will be conducted as a contested case . a nd all 
\'.'i tn~sses will be s wnrn , direct a nd cross examina tion will be the m eans of 
e lic iting tes timony. and all docume nts must be introduced as exhibits . You 
are not required to have an attorney represent you in this proceeding. 
a lthough you may choose to have a n a ttorney present your case . Th e DEQ 
will be r epresented by a m e mbe r of the Attorney General's s ta ff. a nd 
Mountain Cem ent Company m ay h ave counsel present. 

As the law requ ires the Council lo hold a hearing on your objection within 
20 days of th e las t day for filing obj ections, the h earing will be held by April 
21, 1997. You have the oplion of proposing a continuan ce of th e hearing 
elate, however. a ll parties to lh e proceeding musl a gree to the continuance 
before the Council can extend Lh c Lime . This is a condition that is set by 

nicholas
Text Box
Exhibit 1
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statute. If you seek a continuance please s ubmit a written request to the 
Council a long with evidence of DEQ's and Mounta in Cement Company's 
agreement to the continuance. 

We have tentatively sch eduled this h earing to be in Rock Springs on Apri l 17 
to coincide with the Environmental Quality Council's meeting on April 18. 
You will be notified as soon as the sch edule is finalized. A recd,rd of the 
hearing will be made by a court reporter and the decision on the permit 
application is appeala ble to a dis trict court. 

Should you determine that you do not want a h earing on your objection, 
please notify me in writing of your decision. If a hearing regarding your 
objection is not held, your comment will remain a matter of record in the 
DEQ fil es, and the d irector of DEQ will consider the comment when he 
makes a decision on issuance of the Mountain CPment Comp::\ny's permit. 

Please do not h esitate to call if you h ave qu estions concerning Council 
procedures. My phone number is 307-777-7170. 

S incerely, 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COUNCIL 

_l.e~ {L ·ct~--'- '--" 
TERRI A. LORENZON ~· ~ -1--

7 
. 

Director (.___9-

TAL:ccc 
cc: Tom Roan- AG 

Rick Chancellor - DEQ/LQD 
Philip Nicholas - Mtn. Cement 

APR - 2 
L __ 

---
2 
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26 Uarch 1997 

Ad~ihistrator-Land Quality Division 
Depariment of Environmental Quality 
Hershlor Building 
122 We$t 25th Street 
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 

.... 

this lottor is being sent to protest the major rGvision 
amendmP.nt to Vountain Cement's permit 29SC concernins limestone 
minins in Albany County, Wyomins. As a laud own~r witb property 
adjoinins tha propo~ed mino addition this mininc will greatly 
affect the quality of life and living on the property. The 
property value will also be affected. At the ti~e I purchased 
thiR lftnd Frank Plumme r/Younlain Ca~ent told ae tbat t~eir mine 
in tho WCI~t 1/4 ot aection 30, T1SN, R72W will be "reactivated" 
(my emphasi& as they 6ay this mine was never closed, though this 
could be debated). 'fhil5 oddi 1. iot1al mining would be completed by 
the years 2000/2001 and presumably the land would finally be re-
vc.;gt;Lal.ud, It wa.t:~ ::.usgef! t ed durin& an lntorma.tion meet ins with 
Mountain Cement, that 1 ~buuld not build on ~he eastern BO% of m~ 
property due to the · minin~ Activity. Thoy plan on mining ~ight up 
to the property line. Because ot the probl ems associated with 
t he minint;, 1 had d.:>cideel not to builc1 my ho11e until tho e nd or 
this minins activity. Now I am told th~t Wountain Ce~ent wants 
to continuo mining in this area for an a dditional 30 years •ith 
adding portions of four sections of land to their present mina 
permits. Mountain Ce~ent ~l~o informed ~e that my propert~ i s in 
a key (read problem) locat ion 1n regards to the ~ining of 
~octions 30 and 31. What will tb i s mean for building on my 
property? 

ln addition to t he l ow~~ing ot mY property value, which 1 
t hJnk will be dra~at ic as a result of the 30 years of additional 
mining, ~any problems ~ro appar~nt with the mining aotivil~. 
Dust emi&sion. noise from the rock crushe r, li~hts from ni~ht 
minins activitios, other type~ of pollution, a nd no i se from 
transportation of the lirues~onc to the processing plan~ will all 
impact our residential property and quality of lifA, Runoff or 
thn la~k of ~urface watP.r fro~ the ea~t will affect the flora and 
rauna living in the vicinity or my property. As a natural 
histor y (animal, plant , and sccn;c ) photographer this mining · will 
ati~~l my ~utent ~ al incom~ ori~inatl n& 1rom the u s a of my 
property . 

Though 1 have no t yot drilled a water well, I f ear the 
impact ot blasting on tho wel l itself. I a~ concerned about the 
potential pollution or Lh~ a quire r both tor my use and for my 
rc1~tivea i n the city of Laramie caused by t he fractu~cs in the 
bedrock and the mining activity. 

From ~Y e xperience ~ith Mountain Ce~ent in tho past, T do 
not belie v e that I can trust their woitd on what. co,.ald be done to 
rectify these probl em&. An example ot thi5 laok of trun~ 
occurred when a ne~ f e nce was const ruct ed by kountain Cement on 
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the east side of my prnperty. Frank Plummer told •e about the 
con~:~truetion plans apparont.ly only becaus& T happened to be aut 
there wh~n the sur•ayora were ataklns tba lino. I asked Frank to 
keep the mechanical tencina equipmAnt nff ay proport)'. I •as 
told this would not be & problem and this request woUld be 
complied with. Near the end ot the fence construction proJect I 
hod discovered that not onl~ th~ tenoa was constructed trom my 
stdo ot thB property lino <•Y topography waa apparently better 
situated for ~ovina their equipment), but they also drove their 
oquipm$nt to the property l~ne orossina MY propertJ using three 
ditf~rent routes. This 1s not a way to build truat between 
neighbors. Frank aaid the company would pay tor anJ trees 
destroyed. Nothina was said about the blading, deep traCks 
across tho land, or even an apology. ~ 

l do not believe the interest of the local landowners will 
bo served by allowinc the additional tuining lands to be added to 
the exiatin• mine.pnrmit. This ~ould nat ben~fit anyone but 
Kountain Cement. As theJ said more than once to nae "Our mine 
permit was bore prior to you (me) purchasins'your property. As a 
result we (Mountain Cement) do not need to do anything with our 
t~resent mtne permit to make it better for you new land o•ner~- 11 

Now I am thft existln~ and senior lanaowner assuming the lands are 
not addod to the exist1ns permit. At the same time I can not see 
any jUB'tification ror the ooaabi1linc of the two separate mine 
p~r11it11 wit.b the propaeod add.Ltlonal la~nds. That is unless the 
ai11 for Mountain Cement iR to be able tn "thu11b tbeir noaa" at 
the concerns of tbe local residential land o.ners. 

I would like to see theso issues resolved thou1b I am 
wonderin& lt iL can be possible slven th& past events and the 
prnjeoted 1ensth of additional minins. I hope that the Wyomins 
U~O would not favor the money and size ot Mountain Ce•ent o~ this 
pe:rtlli t exten~;don over III)P phot.ocraphy business and m)' risht.s as a 
local land owner. FinallY it should ba remembered that Mountain 
Oement in the paGt owned tht3 aeet!an or land. It they yare evon 
remotely oonoerned about adjacent landowners they oould bave kept 
the ownerahip o'f this section. 

t 
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j\1ountain Cement Permit May9, 1997 
Docket No. 2826-97 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

BEFORE THE EIWIRONHEIITAL 8AULITY COUNCIL 
OF THE STATE OF WY HING 

DOCKET 110. 2826-97 

* * * • * * 

254 

Ill THE HATTER OF: OBJECTIOIIS TO THE MIIIIIIG PERMIT 
APPLICATIOU OF HOUIITAIII CEMEUT COHPAUY, TFll 3 4/70. 

TRAilSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 
1:40 p.ro., Friday 

Hay 9, 1997 

1 

2 

CONTiliUED EXAMINATION 

3 EXAMIIIATIOII OF JAil EIIGIHS: 
By Mr. Goodrich 

4 By The Protestants 
By The Board 

5 
Eu.MIIIATIOII OF ED WASMUTH: 

6 By Hr. llicholas 
By The Board 

7 By The Protestants 
8 EXAMIIIATIOil OF F'RAUK PLUMMER: 

By The Board 
9 By The Protestants 

11) 

11 

12 

13 

256 

Page 

441 
447 
451 

455 
456 
459 

461 
465 

14 

15 

16 

PURSUANT TO NOTICE duly given to all parties i n 
interest , thlo nattnr cane on for hearing at the Albany 15 
County L1brary Laraoie , Wyooing, before the 
Environ~ental Quality Council, Hearing Examiner J ohn 16 

14 

17 
Morris preo1d1ng; w1th Board Members Keith Becker, 
Wendy Hutchinson, Den Costantino, Steve Youngbauer 17 
Steve~ Williams; and Terri Lorenzon, attorney for fhe 

18 Council. 18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

2 

IIIDEX TO EXAHIUAT!Oll 

3 EXAMINATION OF BRIAN WOODS: 
By The Protestants 

4 
EXAHillATIOtl OF DOUG EHHE: 

5 By Hr . Roan 
By The Protestants 

6 By Tho Board 
7 EXAM IllATION OF APRIL LAFFERTY: 

r.1 Hr. Roan 
8 By The Protestants 

By The Board 
9 By Hr. Roan 

10 TESTIHOIIY OF !-lR. WALGREN: 
11 EXAMINATION OF AARY DELA NEY: 

Testimony on her own behalf 
12 By Hr. lhcholas 

By The Board 
13 By Hr. llicholas 
14 EXAMIUATIOII OF BRIAll WAITKUS: 

Testicony on his own behalf 
15 By Hr. Roan 

By Mr. Goodrich 
16 

EXAHIIIATIOII QF JEFF PETTY: 
17 By Hr. ll1cholas 

By The Protestanto 
18 By The Board 
19 EXAHIIIATIOll OF JIM ORPET: 

By Mr. llicholas 
20 By The Protestanto 

By The Board 
21 

EXAHIUATIOU OF MICHAEL BALMIOFF: 
22 By Mr. Nicholao 

By The Protestants 
23 By The Board 
24 

25 
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276 
278 

281 
291 
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333 
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373 
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437 
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24 
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7 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
21 

22 

23 

24 
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257 

THE HEARIIIG EXAMIIIER: ~lill the neeting cooe 

to order. And we will comoence where we cut off our 
bearing in Rock Springs. 

~le • ve got a few things, I think some 
housekeeping chores that we need to take care of, and 
probably we will do those first. 

First thing we•re going to take of is Mountain 
Cement, on their motion to lioit issues and testimony, 
under paragraph 2. There has not been any new 
testimony and evidence, so that's okay. 

HR. IIICHOLAS: That's right . 

THE HEARING EXJ\HIIIER: I think then on 3 we 
will consider that at the tine . 

HR. IIICHOLAS: Okay. 

THE HEARIIIG EXAHIIrER: If you want to object 
then we will consider it at the tice . 

Let oo say first of all we have a ti~e 
constraint thing here. We' re going to let you people 

decide how you 1gant to allot this tine . We•re going to 
shut it down at 6 o'clock. We•ve got to start back 

where we ended the other day because the protestants 
were cross-oxnmining one of the State witnesses. Wo 
~rill finish that. Then we will nove right on in and we 
will lot each of you determine how much ti~e that you 
want to take, nnd how you want to spend it is going to 

(888)637-8469 ~ «Jl Q & A Reporting Page 254 to Page 257 
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Mountain Cement Permit May9, 1997 
llocket~o.2826-97 

1 
2 
3 

258 

be up to you. 
Row, the protestant& sent a list of people 

that they would like to .... that wrote letters, they 

260 

1 and to split the remaining tiDe equally doesn't exactly 
2 seem fair to me from the protastants• point of view. 
3 THE HEARING EXAMINER: He•re pretty close in 

4 would like to be heard, and that•s fine with us, but is 4 time. He•ra pretty close in time, when you taka the 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

it going to help your causa? I mean if it•s not 
something that is going to help your testimony, you 
will just be using that time for people to either vent 
their frustration or their emotions, or repeating what 
maybe has already been said, but if there is expert 
testimony or something that will help your causa, that 
will help us in making a decision, we have no problem 
with it, because that•s why wa•re hera, is to try to 
make a fair and unbiased decision,. 

MR. WALGREN: As it turns out we have only 
have one additional parson that wants to be heard that 
wasn't at Rock Springs dealing with specific issues, so 
I don•t think time wise that will be a big problem, and 
it is on a different subject matter. 

THE HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. But I just want 
you to understand because of the tiDe restraint, if all 
these people want to get up and talk, it will add to 
your case. 

MR. NICHOLAS: Hr. Chairman, what I•ve written 
down here, and what I would recommend, we have, if you 
take breaks and things like that, if you•re going to 6, 

259 

1 you have approximately four hours of time. If you were 
2 to break that out one hour for the State, cut them off 
3 at an hour and a half, and do an hour and a half for 
4 protestant&, and hour and a half for Mountain Cement 
5 Company, and than you say you use your hour and a half 
6 however you want. You want to use it for 
7 cross-examination, you can use it for 
8 cross-examination. If you want to use it for direct 
9 testimony, any cross-examination, that comes out of my 

10 hour and a half. 
11 THE HEARING EIAKINER: Did you want to include 
12 your closing arguments? 
13 MR. NICHOLAS: I think the hour and a half, 

5 time that you have already addressed in 
6 cross-examination. 
7 HR. NICHOLAS: Hr. Chairman, I would point out 
8 that I•m not .... make sure what I•m proposing, is that 
9 your cross-examination time comes out of your time so 

10 that if, while maybe it•s true our witnesses were up 
11 there for an hour and a half, about half of that was in 
12 cross-examination, so I think we are about even, and 
13 what I•m talking about is if you -- your 
14 cross-examination comes out of your hour and a half, 
15 and so that if you want to have your witnesses up for 
16 long -- longer, then you need to cross-examine less. 
17 THE HEARING EIAKINER: Hhat is your comment? 
18 MR. ROAN: Mr. Morris, Tom Roan with the State 
19 of Wyoming. I don't have any objection with the 
20 proposal. How we going to keep time? 
21 THE HEARING EIAKINER: Well, Ks. Loranzon can 
22 keep time. 
23 MR. ROAN: 
24 time as we can. 
25 hour. 

That•s fine. We•ll take as little 
I don•t anticipate any more than a 

261 
THE HEARING EXAMINER: If you•re through and 

2 thare•s some other time left, why, we can divide that 
3 up. 
4 

5 

MR. ROAN: That's fair enough. 
THE HEARING EIAKIHER: Yes. 

6 MR. WEGER: Ky name is James Heger, 
7 protestant. First of all time management will place an 
8 unfair burden on the protestant& since, first, they 
9 don•t have and don•t desire unity of command. 

10 Second, they are new to the law policy, and 
11 the case itself. Third, they•re not professionally 
12 suited to the conduct of a formal hearing, and in each 
13 instance both the State and the applicant are at an 

14 it's fine with me to say we have an hour and a half and 14 advantage, yet both the State and applicant enjoy the 
15 bow we use it is -- we•ll use it for cross-examination, 15 individual representation. 
16 direct or whatever, we'll sort it out as the day goes 
17 on. And then -- and if the State wants more, I•d be 
18 willing to say an hour, ten minutes for each party, 
19 everybody figures out what they want to cross-examine 
20 or how they use it, sort of up to them. 
21 THE HEARIHG EXAMINER: Do you have a 
22 suggestion? 
23 MR. WALGREN: The point I would bring up, at 
24 the last meeting the bulk of the time was used up by 
25 Mountain Cement in laying the ground work initially, 

16 Humber two, so far in this hearing, 
17 protestants have been eager to manage their 
18 presentations in conformance with the advice and 
19 counsel of the State, of the council itself and even 
20 the applicant. Protestants will continue to respond to 
21 such advise in the future. Protestants do not want to 
22 duplicate testimony or give irrelevant or immaterial 
23 testimony. Protestants do not want to waste time. 
24 Three, protestants fear that their 
25 presentations may suffer dramatically if they are 

(888 )6:J7-8469 Q & A Reporting Page 258 to Page 261 
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Mountain Cement Permit May9, 1997 
Dlcket No. 2826-97 
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1 cross-examination. They've taken about 12 minutes is 
2 all they•ve used. 
3 HR. NICHOLAS: These rules are great for 

4 lawyers. 
5 THE HEARING EXAMINER: Pardon? 
6 HR. NICHOLAS: These rules are great on the 
7 lawyers. You don't have to listen to us. 
8 THE HEARING EXAMINER: Okay, So everybody 
9 knows where we stand? 

10 HR. WAITKUS: My nama is Brian Waitkus. I•m a 
11 property owner in Sutllllit Estates. Most of the 
12 information that I•m going to give is utilizing their 
13 existing permit application that Mountain Cement has 
14 submitted already as an exhibit, which I guess I•ll 
15 just say this right nov, instead of presenting this as 
16 an exhibit, since it•s already in the record, I•m just 
17 handing you portions of the mine permit application, 
18 highlighting certain areas. If you want to look at 
19 them, fine. I will reference them by page or section, 
20 depending on what it is. 
21 THE HEARIHG EXAMINER: This is the document 
22 here? 
23 HR. WAITKUS: Yes, That•s, like I say, a 
24 portion of the mine documents, so there vas no reason 
25 to present it as a special exhibit, 

339 

1 Since the DEQ approves a mine permit based on 
2 the accuracy of subr:aitted doclll:l8nts, I've used the 
3 document dated February 13th, 1997 to contest the 
4 permit. The only changes to this document are the 
5 locations of Etchepare•s 6 and 7 that have been 
6 reversed during the EQC meeting in Rock Springs on 
7 April 17th, 1997. 
8 First I•d like to address the hydrology of the 
9 area. Under ground water, it was stated that if ground 

10 water is intersected a mitigation plan will then be 
11 formulated, Since the ground water in the proposed 
12 area is between tens of feet and hundreds of feet below 
13 the surface it•s unlikely that the proposed mining will 
14 directly contact the ground water, With this 
15 understanding it is stated in section DVII6,2,2 that 
16 the proposed quarries are in the recharge zona, Casper 
17 formation aquifer. This would suggest that water 
18 enters the Casper aquifer from this area. 
19 I also need to take a moment here and state 
20 that Brad Walgren bas touched on soma of the things 
21 that I will talk on, but hopefully we von•t overlap or 
22 overlap just briefly, 
23 Nov, on page DVII5.6 of the mine permit it is 
24 stated that limestone is generally unfractured, 
25 unfractured and impermeable, but sandstone below may be 

340 

porous and broken. On page DVII6.2 the application 
2 states, infiltration is higher on the exposed sandstone 
3 as compared to the limestone due to the high porosity 
4 of the sandstone. 

5 
6 who 
7 the 
8 

Chris Moody of the Wyoming Water Consultants, 
I spoke to in a phone conversation, indicated that 

area -

9 

HR. GOODRICH: Objection. I•m sorry, but 
we•re not going to bear hearsay on top of all the 

10 testimony. 
11 HR. WAITKUS: I vas led to believe - and I 
12 could have documented this, but I was led to believe 
13 when ve vera in Rock Springs, that I could bring up 
14 phone conversations. I believe, maybe it was you, 
15 Terri Lorenzon said this, and you said that it would be 
16 okay. How, I could have documented this, but if that's 
17 the case, then tbey•re not documented right nov, so I 
18 have many phone conversations, I have many contacts 
19 that I want to bring up in relation to this. Nov, I 
20 vas led, like I said, I vas led to believe this would 
21 be okay, 
22 MS. LOREHZON: I don't recall this 
23 conversation, and I don't know the context of the 
24 comments so I can•t speak to what this is. 
25 HR. WAITKUS: It might have even been with the 

341 

DEQ people too. 

2 MS. LOREHZOH: The obvious problem is these 
3 people aren't here to testify and subject to 
4 cross-examination, tbat•s the problem. 
5 HR. WAITKUS: I realize. 
6 MS. LOREHZOH: You could have called these 
7 people as witnesses if you had chosen to do so. That's 
8 something that I don•t have any knowledge of. 
9 HR. WAITKUS: And I could have tried that if I 

10 thought that ve weren't going to be able to allow this 
11 type of information. 
12 MS. LOREHZOH: So --
13 THE HEARING EXAMINER: This is a decision that 
14 you have made to do. I mean if you want to go ahead 
15 and tell us about it you can, but what credence we will 
16 you put into it without expert testimony to back it up, 
17 ve will weigh that ourselves, but without these people 
18 here to testify and be cross-examined --
19 MR. WAITKUS: I may have been in error who 
20 told me this, but I vas told that ve could do this in 

21 our -- it might have been Tom Roan, that when we talked 
22 about phone conversations you said that --
23 MS. LOREHZOH: I think Mr. Morris is allowing 
24 you to proceed, 
25 MR. WAITKUS: I just wanted to make that 
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1 point. Try this again, and I•ll still go through it. 
2 You can decide whether you want to accept this or not. 
3 Chris Moody with the Wyoming Hater Consultants 
4 indicated the area south of Laramie bas more sandstone 
5 while the area to the north of Laramie has more 
6 limestone, This would suggest a potential for water or 
7 liquid infiltration in the area could also be higher 
8 even though limestone is reported to cap the proposed 
9 mine. 

10 MR. GOODRICih Excuse me, Mr. Waitkus. Would 
11 you please make clear as you•re talking, whether you•re 
12 referring to hearsay froa Mr. Moody or others, or 
13 whether you're placing your own conclusion on top of 
14 what you•re suggesting someone else may have said, 
15 MR. NAITKUS: I will do that. So far these 
16 are comments made by Chris Moody, 
17 THE HEARING EXAMINER: You can ask him in your 
18 cross-examination, to back this up. 
19 MR. WAITKUS: Okay. What you have here is 
20 drainage E9, in quarry No. 7, which is the north one 
21 listed as quarry No. - It•s drainage E9, quarry No. 6 
22 and on the map it•s listed as quarry No, 7. Thera was 
23 a confusion apparently when Mountain Cement submitted 
24 their aaps, and so 6 and 7 are reversed on this map, 
25 and tbat•s what was cleared up in Rock Springs. 
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1 So drainage in E9 in quarry Ho. 7 bas exposed 
2 sandstone with -- try this. Quarry E9, or drainage 
3 number E9 quarry Ho. 6 has exposed sandstone bed which 
4 is a permeable layer and potential source of ground 
5 water pollution. The red indicates the sandstone at 
6 the bottom of the drainage. 
7 And the cross section is a cross section of 
8 their quarry No. 6, 
9 MR. WILLIAMS: Mould it be possible to turn 

10 off a few of those lights around the screen? 
11 MS. LOREHZOH: Those lights are over hare 
12 right by that door. 
13 MR. NAITKUS: How --
14 THE HEARING EXAMINER: There's a switch on the 
15 wall. 
16 MR. WAITKUS: This map I just previously 
17 showed you shows this drainage E9 in land view, and 
18 this is the approximate location according to Mountain 
19 Cement where the drainage will be crossed by aining 
20 equipment and haul trucks when mining the southern 
21 portions of Etchepare No, 6 and all of Etchepare No, 
22 7. This crossing will consist of many years of 60 
23 trucks per day crossing the drainage of a highly porous 
24 sandstone. It would only take one accident, 
25 apparently, in all these years to create a potential 
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1 problem with the Casper aquifer and Laramie water 
2 supply. 
3 Next I•d like to discuss the Red Hills Fault 
4 which we beard a little bit mention through here. 
5 On page DVII5.5 and 5.6, it is stated that 
6 mining will occur above the minor fault called the Red 
7 Hills Fault. 
8 This is the picture that was shown earlier. 
9 On this page it•s stated that a fault does not reach 

10 the surface of the limestone or the sandstone deposita 
11 below those deposits, which we already heard actually 
12 is a solid line, it does reach the surface. 
13 And it•s not below, the fault does not run 
14 below. This is Etchepare Ho. 1, approximate location. 
15 It doesn•t fall below the quarry, but actually goes 
16 right through it. 
17 Nov, I have Exhibit-- Proponent's Exhibit No. 
18 8, get it all on bare-- or No. 7. This is the more 
19 recent, the 1995 Ver Ploeg map as compared to the map 
20 used by Mountain Cement, which dated to 1977. Mountain 
21 Cement does talk about Ver Ploeg 1995, but I have no 
22 idea if they had access to this map or not, All I know 
23 is that they list things dated to Ver Ploeg, 1995. 
24 MR. ROAR: Excuse me just a second. Could you 
25 identify who bas colored this? He just need some 
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1 foundation. 
2 MR. WAITKUS: You•re right. The yellow is, 
3 from top to bottom, the quarries that they intend to 
4 aine, These were taken off their - Mountain Cement's 
5 plans and just superimposed over these. 
6 The red line is the, whatever it is, almost 
7 four sections, the total perait area that Mountain 
8 Cement is stating they want to peralt with this, and 
9 then the red line, which unfortunately you can•t see, 

10 is the where Soldier Springs is located, 

11 HR. ROAH: Okay. Just for the objection, I 
12 would like to know who applied the colors to the maps, 
13 all the maps you•re using? 
14 HR. WAITKUS: Pardon? 
15 

16 

MR. ROAR: Hho applied the colors? 
MR. NAITKUS: I applied the colors to the map. 

17 THE HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Roan, you can ask 
18 him those questions, get that information on 
19 cross-examination. 
20 MR. ROAR: I•m sorry, Mr. Morris, it wasn't a 
21 question, it vas an objection. I was just trying to 
22 establish the foundation for the evidence, because we 

didn't know who bad colored the map, and we need that 
for the Council to properly consider the weight of the 
evidence. 
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MR. NAITKUS: Like I said, this map was given 
2 to me by the Wyoming GS, Geological Service, and I then 
3 took the upe presented by Mountain Cement, reduced 
4 them, enlarged them so thay•d be correct, and then 
5 overlayed this. This is not something that Mountain 
6 Cement did. 
7 Figure 4 indicates that the fault crosses the 
8 proposed Etchepare quarry Ros, 1 and 4, The fault does 
9 reach the surface as indicated on the solid line. The 

10 fault consists of a horizontal movement of bedrock in 
11 this area. The fault not only occurs on the surface 
12 but continues through the underlying granites below 
13 Casper aquifer, and this vas told to me by Chris Moody 
14 of Wyoming Nater Consultants in a phone conversation 
15 dated the 16th of April, 1997. 
16 Mountain Cement states that previous 298C 
17 mining has occurred vith no problems to the ground 
18 water, so none should he expected vith the proposed 
19 quarries. The Red Hills Fault is a much larger fault 
20 system than they encountered to the north of Summit 
21 Estates, in Section 25 area, and is more complex in 
22 nature. In addition to the Red Hills Fault, additional 
23 faulting occurs in quarries 2, 3 and 5. Since the 
24 faulting, according to the mine permit application, 
25 does not occur in the areas of the proposed quarries, 
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and no additional information is given, it appears safe 
2 to assume from their mine permit application that no 
3 tasting vas conducted to determine the rate of 
4 absorption through any faults, 
5 The statement in the permit application on, 
6 it•s page KPVII-11, Mountain Cement claims that the 
7 water resource iapacts due to mining will be 
8 undetectable. I would like this to be true, though 
9 without additional vork no other party appears to be as 

10 certain as Mountain Cement. If the faulting in the 
11 areas -- if the faulting -- If the faulting of the 
12 areas of any one of the quarries is cemented also, hov 
13 deep is the cemented portion of the fault? Also vhat 
14 is affected on the cemented areas? What is the affect 
15 of the cemented areas where thousands of tons of 
16 limestone are going to be removed? The potential for 
17 ground water pollution cannot be determined by the lack 
18 of data in the Mountain Cement amendment proposal, 
19 Now, here again these next three or four 
20 people are conversations I•ve had, and they•re their 
21 words, not mine. I paraphrase them, but they•re their 
22 words. I was taking notes when I talked to them, 
23 According to conversations with Alan Ver 
24 Ploeg, the parson who created this map, the geologist 
25 with the Wyoming Geologic Survey, on the 21st of April, 
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1997, the Red Hills Fault is a major fault beginning 
2 east of Laramie, traveling to the state line and 
3 continuing into Colorado towards Fort Collins. This is 
4 a strike-slip right fault that reaches from the surface 
5 down to the Precambrian deposits, The strike-slip 
6 fault in this area has the western side moving north --
7 western side moving north of the eastern side under 
8 pressure, and then at the time the pressure was 
9 relieved, the fault rebounded south creating a 

10 perpendicular faulting. Though some areas of the fault 
11 system do show some vertical displacement, more 
12 evidence exists to suggest that it is a strike-slip 
13 fault. 
14 Ver Ploeg completed most of his wort from 
15 aerial photographs and only spot checked locations in 
16 the field. He could not say what portions of the fault 
17 system were cemented, and the cemented portions, to 
18 what depth they were cemented. He did say it was his 
19 belief that there vas a potential for ground water 
20 pollution in this area dealing vith the fault system. 
21 Now, according to conversation with professor 
22 of geology and geophysics, Peter Huntoon at the 
23 University of Wyoming, and it•s generally agreed he is 
24 the person on the Casper aquifer, Caspar formation 
25 aquifer, this conversation also took place on the 21st 
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1 of April, 1997, The Red Hills Fault is the largest 
2 fault in the area, and is coming to the surface and is 
3 not cemented, in his words. 
4 He leads students on summer field work to the 
5 area of the proposed quarries, apparently on the 
6 northern end socewhere, although I vasn•t positive 
7 exactly where he was talking. The area he has studied 
8 appears to he a reverse fault with bedrock from the 
9 west overriding bedrock to the east. The faulting on 

10 the Ver Ploeg map, it was his impression, indicates 
11 only ten percent of all the faulting that actually 
12 occurs along the Red Hills Fault system. This area is 
13 a recharge location for Soldier Springs. He stated 
14 that there's potential for ground water contamination 
15 if any liquid pollution leak will occur in a quarry. 
16 Mitigation plans for the operation of the Dine 
17 is needed, in his estimation, because the contaminant 
18 will move fast, When asked vhat mitigation -- Nhen I 
19 asked him what mitigations could he done after the 
20 pollution has reached the aquifer, Huntoon did not know 

21 vhat could be done. 
22 His students and himself have spent time in 
23 this area, but I can•t tell you specifically as a point 
24 where be was. He just pointed this out on these maps. 
25 Row, according to my conversation with Jim 
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Case, who's the geologic hazard specialist, Geologic 
2 Survey, 18th of April of 1997, Red Hills Fault also, he 
3 states, is not a minor fault, and is not a normal 
4 fault, He thinks that there•s potential for hydrologic 
5 connection between the fault and the Soldier Springs 
6 location. The geologic =ap indicates the aquifer in 
7 this area is supplied from the quarry location. He 
8 suggests that there is a need to establish that the Red 
9 Hills Fault is ceaented and bow deeply it is ceDBnted. 

10 The area around quarry 2 is of grave concern to biD 
11 because of the extensive fracturing in the area. Case 
12 could not -- Case indicated that work in the area bas a 
13 potential to cause pollution. 
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1 bean clarified by presenting a more detailed study. 
2 In addition thera•s a need to prepare a 
3 mitigation plan in advance, before problema occur, 
4 especially in the case of cbeDical pollutants including 
5 but not limited to oil, diesel, antifreeze, 
6 transmission fluid or other possible liquid 
7 contaDinants. Because a high potential exists for 
8 material spills that could contaDinate the ground 
9 water, for example as we noted earlier, 10,000 gallons 

10 of diesel fuel that vas reported to be stored at the 
11 quarry during operation, as stated by Frank Plum=er in 
12 Rock Springs, a detailed aitigation plan needs to be in 
13 place prior to the mining activities and not after the 

14 Finally, in a phone conversation that I had 14 problem occurs. Large or small scala contaDination of 
15 this morning, May 9th, 1997 with Mike Lytle, working 15 the ground may occur when the mine is active or it may 
16 with the Laramie Nater Treatment Plant, Lytle indicated 16 occur during off hours. !gain, I•m concerned about the 
17 that a continuous 1.4 million gallons of water is 17 potential pollution to the aquifer, both for my use and 
18 removed each day from the Soldier Springs artesian 18 for my relatives and tbe City of Laramie. 
19 well. This accounts for ten percent of all of 19 How, dealing with surface water -- Maybe I•ll 
20 Laramie's water in the sw:llll8r, and 25 percent of all of 20 just leave this up. In Section DVII4.2 on page 
21 Laramie • s water during the winter. 
22 Laramie city water, people are very concerned 
23 with water pollution resulting from activities 
24 occurring along the fault zones. The city and county 
25 are presently working on a well head protection plan 
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concerning this very matter. 
2 They know of the proposed Dining on the fault 
3 zones and are very concerned, but since no well bead 
4 plan is in effect, the protections they presently 
5 propose are not mandatory at this tiae. 
6 Mountain Cement does not choose to work with 
7 the city, according to Mr. Lytle, with the city -- work 
8 with the city to ensure safe drinking water. Lytle 
9 also indicated that they have not been allowed access 

10 to the Mountain CeDent quarry areas for studies. He 

11 did indicate that in the last few days or possibly even 
12 the last few weeks, Mountain CeDent bas recently 
13 exposed a fault during their mining activities. !nd 
14 I•m just throwing this out to show that apparently not 
15 all faults are known, and only ten percent on this map, 
16 it•a likely that there are additional faults of the 
17 area. 
18 From this -- How, this is my thinking -- it is 
19 clear that the drainage and faulting are potential 
20 locations for ground water contamination even when the 
21 actual ground water is not contacted by Dining, This 
22 application should be considered to be a public 
23 nuisance because the safety of the Laramie water supply 
24 is at risk. Mountain CeDent states to the contrary 
25 baaed on stateD&nts of general and maybe, should have 

21 DVII4-2, it is stated that the local lands receive 11 
22 inches of annual moisture, all as sporadic snow or 
23 rain, and all runoff will he prevented from leaving the 
24 mine site. This includes the surface water traveling 
25 outside defined channels. !a stated on page No. DVII6 

-- 6.2.6, the cumulative impacts according to tbe 
2 mine, will he undetectable. The permit does not 
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3 address tbe issue of what effect a lack of moisture 
4 will have on down slope vegetation. 
5 !nd on page DVII6.25, tbe impacts of the 
6 Etchepare quarry to the water resources of the area, 
7 they state, will be minimal also. That vas just 
8 another comment that they continue to make. 
9 Now, my -- It•a not really a question, but in 

10 my mind I wonder about the plants on ~ property that 
11 will not receive surface water from the east and thus 
12 affect my property, =Y plants and the wildlife that 
13 visit. 
14 My next comment is on the air quality. The 
15 statement from section HPVII4.6 concerning public 
16 nuisance and safety, is Mountain Cement will =aka every 
17 effort to avoid blasting when the wind is toward any 
18 residence or residential area. If a blast is prepared 
19 when the wind is not towards a residence or residential 
20 area then the blaster may nonetheless detonate the 
21 blast. !nd that, to DB, sounds like if the wind 
22 changes towards my land Mountain Cement will still 
23 blast. 
24 Nov, all these comments are stated because I 
25 am iDD&diately adjacent to Etchepare No. 6. Hy 
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1 property -- it•a a little hard to see on this ~ap. If 
2 I get this right, it•s right about here, this area 
3 right here, 
4 And this is a reason, for exa=ple, just this 
5 blasting where they ~ght change, if the wind changes, 
6 still blast. This is a reason to have a large buffer 
7 zone, which does not exist for ny property, and no 
8 buffer zone is suggested between ~y property and the 
9 quarry No. 6, 

10 Concerning reclamation, according to Mountain 
11 Cecent recla=ation plan, the land will be recontoured 
12 to suggest tho original surface with near normal 
13 movecent of water. The mine plan calls for 300,000 
14 tons of limestone to be renoved fro~ the acendcent area 
15 each year, and 13.5 years of ~ning planned for quarry 
16 6 and 7. This suggests a large depression, up to 14 to 
17 19 feet, is going to be created. With -- and I·~ not 
18 sure whether you people had seen quarry 6 and 7 this 
19 morning, I was not with you, but with little original 
20 topsoil or only licestone existing in many portions of 
21 the quarry area, according to earlier testimony by 
22 Frank rlumcer, how is Mountain Cement going to reclain 
23 and recontour the land to match the surrounding 
24 surfaces? Without soil to place on the surface 
25 revegetating the quarry may prove difficult. Bringing 
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soil from other quarries may work for a time, but 

2 taking what little soil exists at other locations would 
3 eventually catch up with the reclamation efforts, 
4 In a field trip with Steve Goodrich and Frank 
5 rlumcer yesterday, we walked over a portion of quarry 
6 Ho. 6, Frank indicated that a channel would likely be 
7 created on the west side of the quarry area to divert 
8 water into channel E9. If this occurs then water from 
9 this area would be permanently deflected from 

10 continuing to cross my property. The permit does not 
11 address this issue, 
12 In discussing vegetation, as we beard there's 
13 been a couple different studies done, but the study 
14 perforced by Walter Fertig, I believe he is with the 
15 Natura Conservancy, for Mountain Cecent, indicated the 
16 presence of rock cress on the land, There are two 
17 known species, more rare Daggat rock cress, and the 
18 more co~n perennial rock cress. On page DVIIBC-4, as 
19 was mentioned earlier, this is a letter from the Nature 
20 Conservancy, indicated a possible problem with their 
21 survey. The ti~ng of their survey, late in the spring 
22 after blooming did not let them adequately identify 
23 certain plant species. In section DVIIBC-7 the Dagget 
24 rock cress is considered by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
25 to have a 3C2 ranking as a candidate for listing under 
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1 the Endangered Species Act of 1993, Sufficient 
2 information is not available for immediate rule making 
3 by the u.s. Fish and Wildlife. 
4 So in addition to the rare Dagget rock cress, 
5 what other species could have bean eliminated by this 
6 survey? It appears a more extensive survey is needed 
7 and possibly was dona. We don't -- I don•t know. I•m 
8 just going by what vas stated by Natura Conservancy. 
9 An example of finding rare plant species is the rare 

10 and endangered Laramie false sagebrush. This was 
11 identified by the mine prior to the present mine 
12 application, occurring on the northern portion of the 
13 permit lands. According to the mine plan no 
14 application has been nada for rare or uncommon plants 
15 to the EQC. Again, why is this if the Laramie false 
16 sagebrush exists on the northern portion of the permit 
17 area, 
18 In dealing with the wildlife elk wintering 
19 habitat, in mine permit application, page DVII9-6, Rich 
20 Guenzel from the Wyoming Game and Fish, indicated that 
21 the western portion of the mine is out of the normal 
22 range of elk winter habitat, Figure Ho. DVII9-3 in the 
23 application shows elk habitat does not occur in Section 
24 25, township 15 north, range 73 west, and the west 
25 quarter of Sections 30 and 31, which, utilizing this 

357 
1 map, is about hare, western quarter of this. 
2 I have found collaborative evidence of elk on 
3 my property in the southeast quarter southeast quarter 
4 of Section 25 at three different tices this past winter 
5 and twice last -- the winter of 1995-96, and though I 
6 don•t presently live on my property, so I•m not out 
7 there all the time to see if what I evidenced was 
8 suggesting even more, but at least three different 
9 times this year they were out there. 

10 I reported my findings to rat Deibert of the 
11 Cheyenne Wyoming Game and Fish, rat indicated in a 
12 phone conversation dated April 9th, 1997, the need for 
13 mitigation for potential disturbance to wintering big 
14 game. Rich Guenzel from the Wyoming -- from the 
15 Laramie office of Wyoming Game and Fish was also 
16 contacted on the 9th of April, •97 about the same 
17 concerns presented above. He was interested in the 
18 matter concerning the presence of elk on the property. 
19 While talking with rat Deibert on the earlier 
20 conversation I inquired about the existence of the 
21 potential critical wildlife habitat located where the 
22 trees begin to grow in the drainages, You might have 
23 sean that this morning if you went out there. Farther 
24 wast there are no trees in the drainage pretty much, 
25 but near where these quarries are proposed there is 
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1 trees beginning to grow in the drainages. And I 
2 wondered whether these habitat areas, beginning 
3 immediately down slope from the quarry areas are 
4 could be critical habitat areas. Pat said that abe 
5 would look into these probleDB, but she bas not gotten 
6 back with me. 
7 In discussing aigratory birds, the mourning 
8 dove and mountain plover on page DVII9-9, it vas stated 
9 that the mourning dove vas only a seasonal visitor to 

10 the area, most coacon during the spring and fall. In 
11 the summer of 1996 I photographed a mourning dove nest 
12 vitb eggs on my property, and noted numerous doves in 
13 the immediate area during the summer. 
14 I do have pictures of that, and ve could see 
15 those a little vbile later, but it would better to just 
16 go on with it nov, I believe. 
17 I reported the dove nest also to Pat Deibert 
18 from the Cheyenne Nyoming Game and Fish during the 
19 phone conversation on the 9th of April. She indicated 
20 Mourning Doves are covered under the Migratory Bird 
21 Treaty Act, and must be considered at the time of the 
22 application. 
23 On Pat Deibert's visit to the site on the 26th 
24 of May, 1995, Pat noted the existence of the bird 
25 species, the mountain plover. This vas told to me 

359 
1 during the phone conversation of the 16th of April. 
2 Mine application states that the mountain plover is 
3 also a seasonal visitor to the area. That's on page 
4 DVII9-12. Pat Deibert indicated that the known 
5 environmental locations for the mountain plover is 
6 expanding, therefore old species location maps do not 
7 represent the true extent for this bird. It vas bar 
8 opinion that the plover may spend the summer in the 
9 area, and that further work would be required to 

10 deteraine this. 
11 During a phone conversation with Mary Jennings 
12 of tbe U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service in Cheyenne on 
13 April 16th, 1997, Mary indicated that a survey would 
14 have to be completed. A plan would need to be 
15 developed to mitigate effects if the species vera to 
16 found to occur in the mine area and if the U.S. Fish 
17 and Wildlife service believes the species would be 
18 impacted. Mary Jennings also stated that the 
19 disturbance of a nest or its destruction would be 
20 considered a taking by the u.s. Fish and Wildlife 
21 service. According to the mine application no survey 
22 vas conducted since it vas stated that these birds are 
23 only seasonal. 
24 

25 

The mine application is not complete. 
How, dealing with raptor nests as vas noted by 
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1 Brad Walgren earlier, a study performed by Jim Orpet -
2 hopefully that's how you pronounce your name, wherever 
3 you are - with Intermountain Resources, on the location 
4 of raptor nests, did not reveal the presence 
5 of two additional nests in section 36 -- Excuse me. 
6 Sections 36, quarry 6 and 7. This map is the map of 
7 the mine permit. The only thing that I added vas here, 
8 this is my property, and these are the two raptor nests 
9 that I located while viewing the area. Tbe colors on 

10 this map may or may not be of interest. They -- the 
11 purple is ferruginous havka, the green is bald eagle, 
12 and orange is presently unknown, And I did the 
13 coloring on these maps. 
14 As a result of finding these two nests no 
15 known species types could be assigned to these. In 
16 addition to the two undocucented nests, an additional 
17 seven raptor nest locations did not list a species. 
18 Since some raptors are more rare and endangered than 
19 others, until the species using the nest could be 
20 determined the most appropriate method of mitigation 
21 can not be determined. 

In the mine application, page HPVII-19, 
section HPVII4.11, it stated that raptor nests and 
suitable nest locations do not occur within the 
affected area. This is obviously wrong. Mountain 

361 
1 Cement wants to create a mitigation plan and monitoring 
2 program after finding nesting raptors. Here, I 
3 believe, and this is my thought, that this is a 
4 reactive plan instead of a proactive plan. 
5 On the 9th of April, '97, talking with Pat 
6 Deibert by phone with the Cheyenne Wyoming Game and 
7 Fish, abe was also contacted about the nest locations 
8 in 36, Section 36, Tl5N, range 73 wast. I reported to 
9 bar the two previously undetected nests occurring on 

10 the east central aida of the section vest and below 
11 quarry Ho. 7. 
12 Rich Guenzel from the Laramie office of the 
13 Wyoming Game and Fish vas also contacted on the 9th of 
14 April about these same concerns. He responded that the 
15 Game and Fish are interested in the locations of the 
16 raptor nests. He indicated they also needed to be 
17 checked out, 
18 There's -- This is my comment. There's a need 
19 for a more detailed study concerning big game winter 
20 habits. The mine permit, mine permit applications did 
21 not complete a study on the aourning dove or the 
22 mountain plover. This would be required by the 

Migrating Bird Treaty Act. In addition, there's a need 
4 for a more detailed study on the environment of the 

25 Laramie Basin containing the critical habitat located 
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1 in drainages where the conifers begin to grow. These 
2 habitats could potentially be affected by mining 
3 activity. These activities were not studied prior to 
4 the submission of the technically complete Dining 

5 application. 
6 How, I•d like to address the archeology. I, 
7 besides baing a photographer, professional 
8 photographer, I also work for the state archeologist's 
9 office as a project director, 

10 In section MPVII4,7 on page MPVII-15, it is 
11 stated that no archeological or paleontological 
12 resources have been identified within the study site 
13 defined in appendix DVII3, Larson Tibsesar Associates, 
14 the company performing the cultural survey for the Dine 
15 recorded eight sites within the quarry areas Ho, 3 and 
16 4 and along the quarry roads nearby. Because of the 
17 confidential nature of the contents of the map 
18 indicating the location of the archeological sites this 
19 was kept out of the mine permit, the general mine 
20 permit application for view on public display. 
21 I have in my possession a location map of 
22 these sites, but I would hope not to need to display 
23 it, If you'd like me to I can, but because of the 
24 nature that tbey try to keep the locations out of the 
25 public view, if somebody wants me to show it, I will 
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1 show it but they would rather not. 
2 HR. YOUHGBAUER: To make sure others don • t go 
3 on and destroy this site before it•s adequately 
4 mitigated? 
5 MR. WAITKUS: They're trying to -- Because 
6 we•re being paid by the federal and state governcants 
7 and sometimes private industries, to locate these 
8 things, we do not feel it is in the interest of the 
9 science of archeology to publish these because of known 

10 collectors who scour through, if that would be a 
11 correct term, for these locations so they can then go 
12 out and locate the sites. 
13 HR. YOUHGBAUER: Because I was getting a 
14 little confused. Ware you in fact accusing them of 
15 trying to hide something? 
16 MR. WAITKUS: No, I was not. It wasn•t in the 
17 plan because they were trying -- in general they try to 
18 keep these mapa out of the general public view. 
19 Tbey•ra not trying to say they are -- I•m not trying to 
20 say that the mine was trying to keep this out -- They 
21 were trying to keep it out of the public view. They 
22 weren't trying to do anything elsa, Does that make 
23 sense? 
24 
25 

HR. YOUHGBAUER: I•m just trying --
HR. WAITKUS: All I•m trying to say in bare, 
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1 no archeological or paleontological resources have been 
2 identified within the study area, I know this to be 
3 wrong, I have seen the maps where these are located. 
4 The mine permit does not adequately address the issue 
5 of the archeological locations proposed on the mine, 
6 They•re saying that there are no sites there. There 
7 are sites there. That•s all I•m saying. 
8 The idea that the map was not included is no 
9 reflection, good or bad, on the mine, They were just 

10 doing what was asked of them, just to keep the map away 
11 from the general public. 
12 How, in dealing with photography, as I just 
13 mentioned, I am a professional photographer. I have a 
14 short list of some of the places that I have my 
15 photography in. 
16 MS. LOREHZON: Is this an exhibit that was 
17 listed in Rock Springs? 
18 HR. WAITKUS: Yeah. Tbis will be Exhibit BJ 
19 is that correct? This will be Exhibit 8. These were 
20 shown to people and they said fine. 
21 I am a natural history photographer, I 
22 photograph animals, plants, and scenic areas. The 
23 allowing of the mine to go forth will affect my 
24 potential income originating from the use of my 
25 property. The Mountain Cement plan indicates large 
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1 numbers of animals and plants in the area, Mining 
2 activity will decrease the wildlife appearance on the 
3 land near the proposed Dining, and possibly reduce the 
4 types of vegetation, thus reducing potential subjects 
5 for my photography. A buffer zone similar to the one 
6 proposed for the Weaver quarry, of 3,000 feet would 
7 help mitigate, but would not eliminate the affects on 
8 my business, 
9 I have made an overhead, not that I don•t 

10 believe people would think one way or another about 
11 tbis, but I do have -- and I don't know how these are 
12 going to turn out, they didn't look very great, but 
13 these are pictures from Summit Estates areaJ the 
14 sandstone formations, here's the paintbrush, there's 
15 raptors, and I don•t know if this is going to be 
16 pointed out to you, this is a ferruginous hawk nest 
17 that vas about a mile west of Etchepare quarry Ho. 7. 
18 Like I say, it•s not a great picture, but considering 
19 the overhead and that, just to give you an idea of 
20 what's here. 

21 How, concerning building on my property. It 
22 was suggested during the information meeting that 
23 Mountain Cement had in 1994, after I•d already bought 
24 my land, that I should not build on the eastern 30 
25 percent, northeastern 30 percent of my property. 
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This is a map supplied by Mountain Cement to 

2 us at the time of this meeting. I just made an 
3 overhead of this and colored it myself. Ky property is 
4 purple, and when the Warren quarry vas to go in, they 
5 suggested that we not build where the yellow, yellow/ 
6 orange is. Obviously they knew they couldn't tell us 
7 where to build but they suggested that we don't build 
8 in that area. And this vas due to the mining activity 
9 existing in the Harren guarry property. They planned 

10 on mining right up to the section line for this 
11 existing mine perait. 
12 Because of the probleas associated with 
13 mining, Frank Plummer -- I was told by Frank Plummer 
14 that he would not -- that -- see if I gat this right, 
15 Because of the problems associated with the mining I 
16 told Frank Plummer I would not build my home until the 
17 end of this present mining activity, which is 
18 approximately two years from nov. How I•m told that 
19 Mountain Cement wants to continue mining adjacent areas 
20 for an additional 30 years, adding portions of four 
21 sections of land to their present mine permit. 
22 The brown area indicates the area of my 
23 property that would be affected with future mining of 
24 additional lands. This was also told to me in the 
25 summer of '94 after I•d already purchased my property 
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1 and -- but, of course, nothing was said. They're nov 
2 trying to get their permit for this property, and it's 
3 -- it vas guestionable in my mind whether they•d 
4 actually get it or not, or they changed their location, 
5 so stating where they'd like to put their mine is not 
6 the same thing as already having it. 
7 What this also means is that this suggests 
8 that 80 percent of my property should be unsuitable for 
9 a house location. At the time of this information 

10 meeting Mountain Cement also informed tl8 that my 
11 property is in the kay, or as Frank said, a problem 
12 location in regards to mining Sections 30 and 31, This 
13 is the only property contacting the proposed Dina 
14 amendment area. Again Mountain CaDent, when approached 
15 concerning the creation of a buffer for my property, 
16 indicated that this vas not possible. 
17 What does this Dean for my intended building 
18 on ay property if the permit is approved as planned? 
19 In dealing with a buffer zone, in guoting from 
20 section Ho. DVIIl-0, page DVIIl-1, a buffer zona of 
21 undisturbed land surrounding the quarries are to 
22 preclude development which may impact the project, I 
23 added the •are•. In other parts of the mine permit 
24 they repeat, a buffer zona for residential 
25 development. 

1 

368 
In a letter dated the 6th of September, 1996, 

2 in the Mountain Cement document it is stated, 
3 Additional portions of the sections are for a buffer 
4 for the proposed nearby residential community. On the 
5 9th of April, '97, I called Frank Plummer of Mountain 
6 Cement. After informing him about the numerous 
7 comcents in the Mountain Cacant amandcant application 
8 describing the use of buffer zones around the guarries 
9 to keep residential locations away from mining 

10 activity, I asked him about quarry Ho. 6 in relation to 
11 my property imcediataly adjacent. He informed me that 
12 no buffer vas planned for this area, 
13 In the Albany County Commissioners meeting of 
14 April 8th, 1994, Phil Nicholas, this is Mountain Ceaent 
15 Exhibit Ho. 18, stated the need for a half mile buffer 
16 for limestone mines, In the meeting he states it is 
17 also consistent with the experience of Mountain Cement 
18 and other mining operations that a half mile buffer 
19 generally mitigates the adverse effects of blasting, 
20 noise, dust, and visual intrusions on residential 
21 neighbors. 
22 And a half a mile buffer, or approximately, 
23 actually 3,000 feet; 3,000 feet to the section line 
24 would be this. Again I just used one of their existing 
25 minas. I added the distance and colored it myself in 
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1 the yellow. 
2 Statement that I have is vbere•s the buffer 
3 zona for my property? The Weaver quarry, the north and 
4 of the Piper quarry will or have a buffer zone both of 
5 3,000 feet between the mine and residences. Summit 
6 Estates should also receive this buffer. Though I have 
7 yet to build, Mountain Cement permit does not take into 
8 consideration my statements to Frank Plummer made in 
9 1994, and again more recently that I will build a bouse 

10 on this property when the Warren quarry bas neared 
11 completion. Ky 36 acre property contacts quarry No. 
12 6. The present suggestion made during phone 
13 conversations with Frank Plummer on the 9th of April, 
14 to alter the sequence of mining, placing the excavation 
15 of quarries 6 and 7 first would still have mining 
16 occurring at a minimum through the year 2012 beside my 
17 property. This mine permit states that a minimum of 
18 13.5 years will be needed to mine these quarries. 
19 And about the last statement I need to make is 
20 the -- is on the lack of trust and other problems 
21 concerning Mountain CaDent. From my experience with 
22 Mountain Cement in the past, I do not believe I can 
23 trust the words of what can be done to rectify the 
24 arising problems. An example of this lack of trust 
25 occurred when a new fence was constructed by Mountain 
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1 Cement, vas constructed by Mountain Cement on the east 
2 aide of my property. Frank Plummer and land surveyors 
3 were on my property when I happened to atop out at my 
4 land. I vas inforced only at that time that Mountain 
5 Cecent would be replacing a fence. I asked -- which 
6 vas fine, it vas right on the boundary, and there vas a 
7 problem with the fence actually coming too far into my 
8 -- or I bad actually soma of Mountain Cement' a 
9 property on my aide of the fence. 

10 So I was informed at the time that Mountain 
11 Cement would be replacing the fence. I asked Frank to 
12 keep the mechanical fencing equipment off my property. 
13 I vas told that this would not be a problem, and this 
14 request would be complied with. Hear the and of the 
15 fence construction project I discovered that not only 
16 the fence vas constructed from ay aide of the property 
17 line, but they also drove their equipment to the 
18 property line crossing my property, using numerous 
19 different routes, creating erosional problema. 
20 This ia not a way to build trust between 
21 neighbors aa they continue to state in their mine 
22 permit application. After I contacted Frank Plumcer, 
23 be only said the company would pay for my destroyed 
24 trees. Nothing vas said about the blading, the deep 
25 tracks across the land, nor vas I even given an 

371 

1 apology. If this ia how Mountain Cement builds rapport 
2 and ia a good neighbor, something is not right. 
3 Aa to the good relations indicated by Mountain 
4 Cement, the only contact I have bad baa been initiated 
5 by myself, and baa bean met generally with negative 
6 results. 
7 And this ia actually finally a couple of 
8 sentences on the confusion that bas arisen with the 
9 changing of permit nunbera at quarries, Warren quarry 

10 No. 319 vas combined under 298C. Though this may have 
11 been viewed as a convenience to combine the two 
12 quarries under the one permit with more stringent 
13 requirements, with the mine -- would the present mine 
14 permit application addition areas have been allowed if 
15 the two mines vera not recently combined? 
16 THE HEARING EXAMIHER1 Mr. Waitkus. How much 
17 longer are you going to take? 
18 MR. HAITKUS: I have this page, 
19 THE HEARING EXAMIHER1 You have run over your 
20 allotted time nov. Ne will let you finish this page, 
21 but you're limiting yourselves from any other 
22 testimony. 
23 MR. WAITKUS: The mining activity of quarry 6, 

24 1 and 7, without any extended buffer zone, will limit 
25 the usable area of my land, 
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1 The value of land will be dramatically 
2 decreased by mining related activities, pollution and 
3 intrusions for at least 30 years. 
4 Our quality of life on the property will be 
5 affected by this proposed mining activity, including 
6 lights, dust, and noise, traffic. 
7 Wildlife will be impacted by the proposed mine 
8 addition if no detailed studies have been completed on 
9 these mine related problema. 

10 Vegetation on my land will be affected by 
11 decreased amount of available water and transport 
12 activity. Additional rare plant species may occur 
13 within the proposed mine related areas. 
14 Impact of the mining activities on the 
15 environment will affect the use of the area for my 
16 photography. 
17 The safety of the Casper aquifer and Laramie's 
18 water supply baa been questioned by scientists at the 
19 University of Wyoming, and officials of the City of 
20 Laramie. The mine application does not even address 
21 the issue as a potential concern. 
22 Finally, the proposed mine amendment should 
23 have taken a pro-active approach to mitigate problema 
24 dealing with human safety and wildlife and not the 
25 reactive approach that Mountain Cement is presently 
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1 intending to take. So I would ask you to deny the 
2 application due to the incomplete nature of the 
3 application and potential problems with the ground 
4 water contamination, 
5 If the mine application is approved I would 
6 like to see a 3,000 foot buffer zone, between --
7 similar to the one between the Butte subdivision and 
8 Mountain Cement as also applied to the Etchepare 
9 quarries. 

10 Thank you for your tice. 
11 THE HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you. Do you have 
12 any questions, Mr. Roan? 
13 MR. ROAN: Yes, I do. 
14 CROSS-EXAMINaTION 
15 BY HR. ROAN: 
16 Q. You mentioned earJ,yin )'D1U' testimon,ytbat 

17 )'UU're c:mu:emecl about tba polhtticm at tba smtlu:e 

18 migrating to tba aquif8r? 

19 A. That's true. 
20 Q. I think part of,aur testiJnon,ywas 1ll88d on 
21 tbB sparta ,au spoke to, the sandstone, )'UU ware 

22 &:OilC8l'l18d about tba sandstone, the P8I'Dlllllbl111i oftba 

23 IIBIUistone? 
24 A. In the :Mountain Cement mine application they 

25 stated that the limestone is penneable and sandstone 

(888 )657-8469 Q & A Reporting Page I/0 to Page I/3 
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may be porous. In other places they say it's highly 

2 porous. That had me wondering, so if indeed there's 

3 exposed sandstone I was wondering about the potential 

4 for pollution either through the sandstone to reach the 

5 water of the aquifer. I think that was the question 

6 raised. 

7 Q. Yes, it Is. You're aware the aquifer Is not 

8 polluted? 

9 A. That's true. 

10 Q. I wanted to make sure I undenJtood where )'UU 

11 were going with that. You had a map, an overhead. 

12 D-82, the fault? 

13 A. The Mountain Cement one or the one that- or 

14 the Ver Ploeg? 

15 Q. It's the one in red, ,au hlghlJghtecl the fault 

16 lotation. 
17 Itwaaanearllerone. 

18 A. I think this is what you want. 

19 Q. Thlalswhatrdlike. ItlookBtomeUke 

20 the Bed BlUs Fault Is actualJ,yfdantmed on the map? 

21 A. Yes, it is. 

22 Q. It's actua])yspelled aut there? 

23 A. Yes, it is. 

24 Q. And acc:ordlng to )'0111" legend ,au got the Bed 

25 Billa Fault as being outlined in red. It appears to me 

1 tbat the line nm to the- to Bed Billa Fault line is 
2 not part of the fault. Can )'UU uplain that? 

3 A. I could not tell by the map, at the time I put 

4 this together, and rm still not sure if the fault is 

5 one line or multiple fault lines. It could be one or 

6 either; could be one fault. The fault could be 

7 consisting of more than one line on the map is what 

8 rve bean told, just like you can tell farther up where 

9 it splits, there's two actual fault lines there, so I 

10 can not tell on this map if the Red Hills Fault is one 

11 or two, because they don't list what the other one is 

12 called, it's called something diO'erent. 

13 Q. OkB1. But we've heard t.estbnoJI.y~that 

14 the Red BlUs Fault is in fact tba one that's 

15 identified in red on the map? 

16 A. Well, can I put up this other map? 

17 Q. Yea. 

18 A. Now, here you can see the thing listed as the 

19 Red Billa Fault, and there's numerous horse tail 
20 fractures coming off, a term that was told to me here 

21 by one of the sciantists, I think Ver Ploeg. All of 

22 these, as far as I can tell, the fault as listed on 

23 this one, only shows one fault. The other map shows 

24 two faults. I don't know where the problem lies. They 

25 don't even show a second fault in that area. That was 
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on the earlier map. 

2 Q. That's Mr. Ploeg's map? 

3 A. Ver Ploeg. 

4 Q. That's off the map ,au offered, Exhibit No.7, 

5 Is that right? 

6 A. That's right. 

7 Q. That's a prelfmiDary geologic map, Is tbat 

8 cmrect? 
9 A. Ia that what that 88,)'!1? 

10 Q. Yeah, it Is. rm sorry, I'll let ,au look at 

11 it. 

12 A. Yeah. If that's whatit 88,)'!1, yes. 

13 MS. LOREHZOH: Gentleman, you•re going to bave 
14 to be careful. It•s bard for tbe court reporter to 
15 bear witb all tbe noise in tbe room, you•re going to 
16 bave speak up and direct your comments towards 
17 Marissa. 
18 MR. ROAN: Okay. Tbank you. 
19 Q. (By Mr. RoaD) So based on the fnrormation that 

20 we have ftoom our geologist, the t.estbJum.y tbat .)'DU 

1 heard earlier, the Bed BlUs Fault is the line tbat 

nma - tbat Is identified on tbat map as well? I 
23 don't know how accurate tbat is because It identifies 

24 prelimJnary, but 8.BII11Dl8 it's accurate, it is the line 

25 that is idantffted on )'0111" other map -

1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. -in red? But the one nm to it I question 

3 the 8CCU1"8C7 of that given the fact it's not identified 

4 as the Red BDla Fault. And ,au are sure where It is? 

5 A. That is true. and also when comparing these 

6 two maps they don't even show another fault right 

7 beside it, about where the red in Red Hills Fault is, 

8 is where this other one is. 

9 See, my problem was, is that one map shows two 

10 faults, one map shows one fault. 

11 Q. One is puhlished and QD8 is not, correet? 

12 A. One is stated as a Red Hills Fault, the other 

13 one, I don't know. 

14 MS. LOREHZOH: Please. 
15 Q. (By Mr. Roan) The map tbat 101l're using, the 

16 one with the red linea on it, this one, is off from 

17 whlchmap? 

18 A. This is from the mine permit. Right at the 

19 moment I couldn't tell you which map it is, but this is 

20 the mine permit map. 

21 Q. A published map, and the other is the 

22 prelfmiDarymap, correct? 

23 A. Preliminar,y, apparently still published 

24 though. I mean it could be a preliminary map, but it's 

still published as far as I know. 
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1 Q. wen. we know that it Is a preUmJDar,ymap. 

2 That was the question I had. 

3 A. This is the actual map. 

4 Q. That's good. Let's see. You talked about 

5 several canvarsatlons ;JOU had an the telephone with a 

6 difl8nmt aclantlst. I was jost curlous if they sent 

7 ;JOU BD,Yreporta they had prepared 1n COJijunctlon with 

8 the studies? Apparentl,ytbetd done some studies; Is 
9 that correct? 

10 A. I would think so. 

11 Q. Based an the CODUD8Dts they gave ;JOU? 

12 A. About this particular area meybe or maybe 

13 not. Only Ver Ploeg, I know he actualJ,y has things 

14 produced on this area, which is the map. 

15 Q. 0~. 

16 A And he also bas a map in the mine application 

17 desc:ribing the bedrock that's exposed on the surface, I 

18 believe is what the map shows. 

19 Q. Severaloftheseaclantlstadfdhava 

20 c:anclwdons, fiu:tual c:ancluslans about- about thsir 

21 disc:lplines -
22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. -which 111'8 relative to this Bite? 

24 A. That's correct. 

25 Q. So )'OU would 888UDl8 they studied the site, 

correct? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. We'll888UD18 tbat for the sake of argument. 

4 A. Well, the one he had taken his students out to 

5 that area, so he had taken a look at it. 

6 Q. Did theysend;JOU copies ofthsir reports in 

7 ccmJmu:tion with thsir studies they did? 
8 A. No, they didn't. 

9 Q. Did ;JOU ask f'or those reports? 

10 A. Unfortunately, no, I didn't. 

11 Q. rmjost curious if we hadiiii,Ythlngelse to 
12 share. 
13 One comment;JOU had, one part of ,our 

14 testimony was )'Our COJlCBl'JI. about Mountain Cement's 

15 operations intercepting ll1l1'face water and~ 

16 pooliDglt and not allowing it to Oow away from ,our 
17 settling ponds? 

18 A That's what they state in their mine plan, 

19 yes. 

20 Q. Thenis a document tbat I want ;JOU to look at. 
21 and rn refer the Ccnmcll to Mountain Cement's Exhibit 

22 -1 don't remember the number. That's the entire 

23 appllcaUon. 

24 HR. NICHOIASs Exhibit 1. 

25 Q. (By Mr. Bosn) Mountain Cement's Exhibit No.1, 
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1 which cantslns this document. This Is out of the mine 

2 plan. it's MPVII-22, and there's a table an this. 

3 There's a table an this, and there's soma 

4 notes at the bottom of the table. ll';JOU jost identifY 
5 the tah1e, jost identifY the top line. 

6 A. It 81\r-1 Sediment Pond Capaclt;y. 

7 Q. Then read the tbfrd note Usted below the -

8 A. Operation HWL may fluctuate, depending on 

9 stonn event intensit;y and duration, frequency. 

10 However, Mountain Cement will pwnp evacuate any or all 

11 active ponds, three at any one time, when they reach 

12 their individual pond capacities as shown in the table 

13 above, once acceptable water quallt;y is met. 

14 Q. So parhaps when Moun1afn Cement's looking at 

15 this, do ;JOU suppose tbat they're c:onaldering that 

16 actuaiJ,ythey're not pooUng the water without 

17 re1eaaiDg it from the sediment ponds? 

18 A. I believe what that states is they're going to 

19 pwnp water, apparently into the existing drainages. 

20 This was -This will still not comply to my land which 

21 is down slope from a very small drainage, and would add 

22 water to my propert;y. Apparently according to that, it 

23 doesn't sa,y, they just ss.Y they're going to pwnp it. 

24 That doesn't mean they're going to take it away in 

25 trucks, it just 81\r-1 that water is not going to be 

1 transported down slope, necessarily, to my propert;y. 

380 
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2 HR. ROARs Okay. I understand. Thank you. 

3 That•s all. Thank you. 

4 THE HEARING mHIHER: Mr. Goodrich. 

5 HR. GOODRICH: Thank you, Mr. Norris. 

6 CROSs-EXAMINATION 

7 BY HR. GOODRICH: 

8 Q. Mr. Waitkus, a coupla quick questions. 

9 Initially regarding ,our contact with people ;JOU talked 

10 to an the telephone, did ;JOU provide any of these 

11 people with copies of the permit amendment appJkation 

12 ofwhichwe'vebeenspealdngtc~ 

13 A. I would have very much like to have given them 

14 copies of this, but at one dollar a page I could not 

15 afford to copy this entire report. I did have some 

16 maps that I showed them. 

17 Q. wen. ,au talked to them an the telephone? 

18 A. When I talked to the three scientists at the 

19 universit;y, the ones on the phone were all generally 

20 aware of the areas that I was talking about. 

21 Q. So )'OUr dlsc:wrsian with them was In ganera1 

22 terms? 

23 A. How do you mean? 

24 Q. ThsyweregeneraiJyawareofthearea,howdo 

25 ;JOU mean? 
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BEFORE THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COUNCIL 

STATE OF WYOMING 

•~ • lr., 

... ,,.o.i ,.\. J_,...... .... :., " .... . 

IN THE MATTER OF OBJECTIONS TO) 
THE MINING PERMIT APPLICATION ) 
OF MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY ) 
TFN 3 4/70 

DOCKET NO. 2826-97 

~.4\itv.u;.;t~l..o· .._; .......... , ; .. ~ 

FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER 

The Environmental Quality Council (the Council) held a public hearing in the above entitled 

matter on Aprill7, 1997 in Rock Springs, Wyoming and on May 9, 1997 in Laramie, Wyoming. 

At a regularly scheduled public meeting held on June 23, 1997 in Casper, Wyoming, the Council 

reached a unanimous decision in this matter. 

Appearances at the hearings were entered by Philip A. Nicholas and Stephen N. Goodrich of 

Anthony, Goodrich, Nicholas and Sharpe, LLC for applicant Mountain Cement Company 

(Mountain Cement); Thomas A. Roan, Senior Assistant Attorney General for the Department of 

Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division (DEQ); and by the following persons: James 

Weger and Aleida Matthies, Bill Brantz and Holly Brantz, Edward J. Delaney and Mary R. 

Delaney, Brian R. Waitkus, Stuart B. Wohl, Millard Johnson and Deanna Johnson, Summit 

Estates Landowners Association, Linda Blair and Family, and Richard Uren (the Protestants). 

Pursuant to W.S. § 35-11-406(p) and W.S. § 16-3-110 the Environmental Quality Council adopts 

the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

I. Mountain Cement is a cem.ent manufacturer whose plant is located approximately 

two miles south of Laramie, Wyoming. 
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2. Mountain Cement uses limestone as a raw material in the manufacture of cement. 

3. Mountain Cement or its predecessor has mined limestone east of its plant since at~ 

least the 1950's. Mountain Cement's predecessor held two permits under the Open Cut 

Reclamation Act and later obtained two "conversion" permits when the Environmental Quality .. 
Act was adopted. These permits are Permit No. 298C and Permit No. 319C. In 1987 Mountain 

Cement applied for and received Permit No. 298C-A4 which expanded original Permit No. 298C. 

Mountain Cement currently quarries limestone the Permit No. 298C-A4 area. Permit No. 319C 

has been consolidated into Permit No. 298C-A4. 

4. On April 26, 1996, Mountain Cement submitted a Permit Amendment 

Application to the DEQ for Permit No. 298C by adding an additional 2160 acres which will 

include seven quarries affecting 289 acres within the new permit area. The application was 

designated by DEQ as TFN 3 4/70. 

5. Although the application is designated as an amendment to an existing permit, it 

meets all the requirements of a new permit application. 

6. On February 10, 1997, DEQ informed Mountain Cement that TFN 3 4/70 was 

deemed technically complete under the Environmental Quality Act (the Act) and was ready for 

publication. 

7. Mountain Cement published notice of its permit amendment application and 

provided DEQ proof of publication as required by W.S. §35-11-406(j). 

8. The Protestants filed objections to the application. All of the Protestants are 

residents of Summit Estates, a subdivision located west of, and sharing a common boundary 

with, the proposed permit area. Summit Estates is separated from the proposed permit area by 

existing permit areas of Permit No. 298C. 

9. Pursuant to §35-ll-406(k), the EQC issued a Notice of Hearing and Order on 

April 3, 1997 setting this matter for a contested case hearing in Rock Springs, Wyoming on April 

17, 1997. 

I 0. The Council received prehearing statements from applicant Mountain Cement, 

DEQ and Protestants Summit Estates and James Weger. 

11. The contested case hearing in this matter was convened in Rock Springs on April 

2 \ 
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17, 1997. The hearing was not completed on that date, and the Council continued the hearing to 

a date and location to be determined later. Present at the first day of hearing were Council 

Members Steve Williams, Den Constantino, John Morris, Keith Baker, Wendy Hutchinson, Pat 

Hand, and the Council's Director and legal advisor, Terri A. Lorenzon. 
"' 

12. On April 30, 1997, following communication with the parties, the EQC set May 

9, 1997, as the date for completing the hearing in Laramie, Wyoming. All parties had an 

opportunity to propose changes to their prehearing documents. 

13. Preceding the May 9, 1997 hearing, the Council toured the proposed permit area 

with representatives of Mt. Cement, DEQ, and the Protestants. The tour encompassed the 

proposed expansion area and the area permitted under Permit No. 298C, Mountain Cement's 

current permit. 

14. The hearing was reconvened and concluded on May 9, 1997. Present at the 

second day of hearing were Council Members Steve Williams, Den Constantino, John Morris, 

Keith Becker, Wendy Hutchinson, Steve Youngbauer, and the Council's Director and legal 

advisor, Terri A. Lorenzon. Mr. Youngbauer read a transcript of the proceedings held on April 

17, 1997 prior to participating in the hearing held on May 9. Mr. Hand c~uld not attend the 

hearing on May 9, and he then read the transcript of and examined the exhibits introduced at the 

hearing held on May 9 prior to participating in the decision on June 23 in Casper. 

15. Protestants, all of whom are from the Summit Estates development, objected to 

the issuance of the permit on the bases that the application is incomplete; the proposed quarry 

is a public nuisance; Mountain Cement has pending violations and has failed to properly reclaim 

lands already mined; Mountain Cement has not proposed a reclamation schedule that complies 

with §35-11-402(a)(iii) and the DEQ Noncoal Regulations; Mountain Cement failed to identify 

the source, quantity and quality of water it intends to use for the new mining area; Mountain 

Cement has not identified the nature and depth of its limestone seam; Mountain Cement's 

blasting will damage water wells or the groundwater aquifer; the operation will interfere with 

surface water flow; the operation is too close to existing and proposed residences; Mountain 

Cement's haul trucks will create traffic hazards on the access road; the existing haul road was not 

more than 300 feet from an existing dwelling; and the proposed operations will damage the area's 

3 



PAGE 22

scenic and archaeological values. General concerns were raised at the hearing concerning. faults 

and spills. 

16. Expert testimony on the impacts of Mountain Cement's expansion on the 

hydrology, geology, surface water, m.oundwater, and wildlife and the impacts of blasting, lights, 

and noise on the neighboring residences was presented. 

17. The land included within this permit am~ndment has not been previously mined, 

and there is no outstanding reclamation obligation on this acreage. 

18. Mountain Cement has no pending violations. 

19. Mountain Cement has proposed a reclamation schedule which requires it to 

commence reclamation at the earliest feasible time and, in any event, within two years of the 

completion of mining in each section. Mountain Cement has submitted a map showing the 

sequence of mining and reclamation. It commits to reclaiming 10 to 30 acres per year, which is 

the approximate number of acres it plans to disturb per year. Therefore, Mountain Cement is 

required to backfill, grade, contour and seed a minimum often acres per year, depending on the 

acreage affected in that year. 

20. Mountain Cement's permit amendment application addresses public safety by 

controlling access to its operations by using signs, fences, and gates. 

21. Mountain Cement has identified the nature and depth of the limestone deposit in 

the area covered by the permit amendment. Limestone will be mined from the Casper Formation 

which consists of calcarenite and calcilutite, and the deposit is two to sixteen feet thick. Most of 

the deposit is near the surface. 

22. No portion of the permit amendment area has been designated as rare or 

uncommon under W.S. §35-11-112(a)(v). 

23. Evidence at the hearing demonstrated that Mountain Cement has not proposed to 

disturb any land within 300 feet of an existing occupied dwelling. 

24. Occupied dwellings are located within 300 feet of land, including the haul road, 

disturbed under the terms of existing permits. These mining areas were affected prior to the 1969 

Open Cut Reclamation Act and the Environmental Quati$ Act. Summit Estates was developed 

after Mountain Cement and its predecessors began mining in the area. 
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25. Residences or proposed residences on land adjacent to the area included within 

this permit amendment or current permit areas, will have some impact from Mountain Cement's 

operations. However, Mountain Cement's mine plan includes the construction of earthen berms 

to limit the amount of noise and light emanating from active pit areas. Mountain Cement has .. 
agreed to limit quarrying operations to daylight hours until the pit floor is deep enough that the 

crusher and accompanying lights can be placed inside the pit, out of the view of quany neighbors. 

26. Protestants complained that Mountain Cement's permit amendment area did not 

include a buffer zone between active mining areas and adjacent property. The only buffer zone 

required of a mining operation is that there can be no affected lands within 300 feet of certain 

structures or features without the landowner's consent. Mountain Cement meets this 

requirement. 

27. The evidence showed that Mountain Cement's plan for mitigation of impacts on 

neighboring homes will limit the light, noise, and dust from the mining operation. Mountain 

Cement must obtain an air quality permit which will control air emissions. 

28. The haul road that will be used for the new permit area was included in the 

original Permit #319C and has been used since Permit #319C was issued. Part of the haul road is 

a paved county road and. Mountain Cement purchased a permanent easement to use the 

remaining portion of the road. Mountain Cement will maintain all of the road and has plans to 

use dust suppressants on the unpaved portions of the road. 

29. Mountain Cement's mine plan includes a blasting plan which meets DEQ 

standards. These standards are designed to prevent damage to property outside the permit area. 

If damage occurs, procedures are available in the Act to evaluate and mitigate such damage. No 

evidence was introduced which would show that blasting at the quarry sites will damage either 

water wells or structures near Mountain Cement's proposed operations. 

30. A blasting expert testified concerning the effects of blasting. He stated that while 

people living nearby may hear and feel a blast, the blasting will not affect structures or wells .. He 

testified that blasts will generally occur once a week, and explained how climatological factors 

including wind and cloud cover will further limit the impact on anyone within the vicinity. 

31. Mountain Cement identified the source and quality of water that will be used in 
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its operations. Water will come from the City of Laramie or from water wells already permitted 

by Mountain Cement. 

32. Mountain Cement's amendment application contains plans to divert water from 

surface drainages that intersect quarries and plans to build culverts to accommodate roads. The .. 
diversions around quarries will be temporary and the flow will be directed back into the natural 

drainage downstream of the quarry. 

33. Although the Protestants argue that Mountain Cement failed to address potential 

contamination of the aquifer from a fuel spill, no technical or scientific evidence was presented to 

validate this concern. The prospect of groundwater contamination was also raised when concerns 

over possible impacts to a fault in the area were raised. Experts testifying on hydrology and on 

the design and implementation of the blasting plan concluded there is little chance of surface 

contaminants reaching the aquifer or water wells. Although fuel will be stored close to quarry 

sites, no evidence was introduced to support the argument that a fuel spill could reach the 

aquifer. 

34. Although the permit area is subject to faulting, the evidence showed that it is 

unlikely the faults co.uld convey contaminants from the surface to the aquifer even if the faults 

were "opened" by mining activity. 

35. Mountain Cement has a spill prevention, containment, and countermeasure plan 

to address spills. 

36. Monitoring wells are required by the mine plan and these wells are designed to 

provide information on the quality of the aquifer. 

37. If impacts to surface water or groundwater occur, mechanisms are available in the 

Act that require mitigation of the impacts by Mountain Cement. 

38. DEQ Rules and Regulations require a map of wells within 1/2 mile of the permit 

boundary, and a list of permitted wells within three miles of the permit ~oundary. This map of 

well sites and the required list of wells is found in the application. 

39. A Class III archaeological survey was conducted by a contractor for MountaiD. 

Cement, and the study was reviewed by the State Historic Preservation Office. A State Historic · 

Preservation Office approval Jetter is in the mine permit file. No evidence was presented to 

6 



PAGE 25

.• 

• 

suggest that the Historic Preservation approval is in error or that archaeological sites, not 

identified by Mountain Cement, exist within the proposed expansion area. 

40. Evidence was presented that showed federal and state agencies with expertise in 

wildlife were consulted in the preparaJion of and review of the permit amendment application. In 

addition, the mine plan contains provisions for monitoring raptors and working with the United 

States Fish & Wildlife Service to protect raptor nests within 1/2 mile of mining operations 

41. A wildlife biologist who performed or supervised the wildlife field studies 

testified on behalf of Mountain Cement. The wildlife report, which is included in the 
~ 

application, was completed in October 1995, and the mine plan anticipates that additional 

information on wildlife in the permit area may become available in the future through monitoring 

or from the public. Mitigation of impacts from Mt. Cement's mining operations may be required 

should state or federal wildlife agencies determine that it is necessary. 

42. Evidence presented by the Protestants did not contradict the findings of the 

wildlife study and it did not show that the plan for accommodating wildlife is inadequate. 

43. The Protestants discovered a labeling error, whereby 2 quarries, Etchepare six and 

Etchepare seven, were reversed on some application maps. !his labeling conflict was corrected. 

44. Competent scientific and technical testimony was offered to support Mountain 

Cement's Permit Amendment Application, and by DEQ concerning its review of the application 

and its finding that the application was technically complete. This testimony demonstrated that _ ~ 

the proposed expansion of Mountain Cement's operations will not cause pollution of the waters 

of the state, will not cause a public nuisance, and will not irreparably harm or materially impair 

wildlife habitat. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Environmental Quality Council has jurisdiction of this matter pursuant to 

W.S. §35-11-112(a)(iv), due notice was given to all parties, and publication was made as required 

by law. 

3. Mountain Cement's Permit Amendment Application TFN 3 4170 complies with 
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the requirements of the Act and the regulations promulgated pursuant to the Act. 

4. The mining operation proposed in Mountain Cement's Permit Amendment 

Application TFN 3 4/70 does not constitute a public nuisance or endanger the public health and 

safety. 

5. The proposed mining operation will not pollute any waters in violation of law. 

6. The existing haul road in Section 25 of Summit Estates is currently permitted 

under 

Permit No. 298C-A4 (originally Permit No. 319C) and is not properly before the Envirorunental 

Quality Council in this matter. 

7. The affected lands identified in Mountain Cement's Permit Amendment 

Application TFN 3 4/70 are not within 300 feet of any existing occupied dwelling, home, public 

building, school, church, community or institutional building, park or cemetery. 

ORDER 

Based upon these findings of fact and conclusions of law, it is ordered that the Director ofDEQ · 

issue a mine permit amendment to Mountain Cement Company in accordance with the permit 

amendment application filed as TFN 3 4/70. 

Dated: August 2 2~ 1997. 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COUNCIL 

~ 
._............Keith Becker Den Costantino 
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1 Rick Chancellor- Mountain Cemeiif298:c-niine revision 

From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

3 December 2003 
Mr. Corra 

<wildphoto1 @juno.com> 
<jcorra@state. wy. us> 
12/3/03 9:16AM 
Mountain Cement 298-C mine revision 

This letter is in response to the Public Notice published in the Laramie Boomerang newspaper 
concerning the revision in the Mountain Cement 298-C mining plan. This would allow the mining of 
Etchepare mine areas six (6)and seven (7) prior to the mining of Etchepare mines two through five (2-5). 
The revision is also asking for the continued use of Howe Lane to access Etchepare mines 6 and 7 to haul 
out the mined limestone. 

In addition to the e-mail that was sent to you on the 2nd December 2003 I want to object to the 
revision of Mountain Cements 28C mine plan. The revision does not address two points I believe need to 
be clarified. As stated in the Public Notice Howe Lane will only be used for the mining of Etchepare mines 
6 and 7 then I believe the following conditions should be added to the revision: 
1. The use of Howe Lane would only be used for Etchepare mines 6 and 7 as they are presently plotted, 
not for any anticipated or unanticipated expansion of these mines. 
2. As the use of Howe Road would only be used for Etchepare mines 6 and 7, there is a need to set a 
time limit for the use of the road. 
Bob Kersey indicated the mining of Etchepare 7 and 6 would take about 9.5 years and potentially less time 
[if his thoughts on the amount and quality of the limestone are accurate]. With this being the case, I would 
like to see a time limit of 10 years set for the continued use of Howe Lane, beginning in 2004. This time 
limit would help encourage the mine to keep to their schedule and would aid in the prevention the use of 
Howe Lane for other mining in the vicinity. A ten year time limit, hopefully, would also not unduly burden 
any new owner in Summit Estates with an agreement between the mine and past owners of Summit 
Estates. 

These small problems could be overcome by placing conditions on the revision to the Mountain 
Cement 298-C mining plan. If these two conditions are added to the revision, I would have no objection to 
the plan. 

Brian R. Waitkus 
Vice President, Summit Estates Landowners Association 
1105 E. Canby 
Laramie, Wyoming 

The best thing to hit the internet in years- Juno SpeedBand! 
Surf the web up to FIVE TIMES FASTER! 
Only $14.95/ month -visit www.juno.com to sign up today! 

CC: <rchanc@state. wy. us> 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
LAND QUALITY DIVISION 

STATE OF WYOMING 

IN THE MATTER OF THE MINE PERMIT AMENDMENT 
APPLICA T!ON OF MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY, 
TO PERMIT NO. 298C, A-5; TFN 4 3/119. 

) 
) 
) 

STIPULATED RESOLUTION TO OBJECTIONS 

.1. RECITALS. 

A. Mountain Cement Company (MCC) filed an application with the Department of 

Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division (LQD) to revise its mining permit 298C-A5 

which was approved January 5, 1998, by the LQD. The purpose of the revision is to (I) allow 

Mountain Cement Company to use Howe Lane to haul limestone from areas identified as 

Etchepare 6 and 7, located in the South one half of the permit area, and (2) to change the mining 

sequence to permit the mining of the areas designated as Etchepare 6 and 7, before mining the 

area identified as Etchepare 2. 

B. MCC's application was protested by Brian R. Waitkus. 

C. An informal meeting was scheduled by the LQD on January 7, 2003, at the 

Albany County Public Library to attempt resolution of the protest filed by Mr. Waitkus. The 

meeting was attended by the Administrator and Staff of LQD, representatives of MCC, Mr. 

Waitkus and Deanna Johnson. 

D. MCC and Mr. Waitkus have agreed to conditions and requirements which resolve 

the objections raised by Mr. Waitkus to the approval of MCC' s permit application to revise its 

existing Permit 298C-A5. 

H. ADDITIONAL STIPULATED CONDITIONS TO PERMIT. 

Mountain Cement Company agrees that the following additional conditions be made a 

part of Permit Application No. TFN 4 3/119 to be issued by the Land Quality Division to MCC 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections, Page 1 of4 pages. 
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for its Etchepare Quarry: 

l. MCC agrees that it will not mine within the area identified as "Area S-1" on the 
attached USGS quadrangle map. The foregoing restriction does not prohibit MCC 
from placing or stockpiling topsoil or overburden within Area S-1. 

Area S-1 encompasses the area within the SWI/4SW114 of Section 30, T15N, 
R72W, Albany County, Wyoming, lying between the western section line of 
Section 30 and a line beginning at the SW corner of Section 30 and then 
extending northeast on a 45° angle to a point 200 feet from the western section 
line and the southern section line of Section 30, and then extending north from 
that point to a point located 200 feet east of the western section line of Section 30 
along the northern most boundary line of the SWl/SWl/4. 

2. MCC agrees to the following conditions for mining within "Area A" on the 
attached USGS quadrangle map, also described as the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 
30, T15N, R72W, Albany County, Wyoming, less Area S-1: 

(i) MCC agrees to notify Mr. Waitkus and LQD of its intent to mine within 
Area A no later than July 1, 2004; 

(ii) In the event that MCC elects to mine within Area A it agrees to file an 
amendment to Pennit No. 298C-A5, as amended, to allow such mining 
activity no later than September I, 2004; 

(iii) Any mining within Area A shall take place prior to commencing mining in 
the area identified as Etchepare 7B; and 

(iv) Upon MCC's (1) failure to notify of its intent to mine in Area A within the 
time provided above, (2) failure to apply for a permit amendment for Area 
A within the time provided above, or (3) commencing mining operations 
in Etchepare 7B, it agrees that its right to mine within Area A are forfeited 
and that it will not return at any time to mine Area A. 

3. MCC agrees that it will not mine within the area identified as "Area S-2" on the 
attached USGS quadrangle map. The foregoing restriction does not prohibit MCC 
from placing or stockpiling topsoil or overburden within Area S-2. 

Area S-2 encompasses an area 200 feet in width along the length of the northern 
most boundary line ofNEl/4NEl/4 of Section 36, Tl5N, R73W, Albany County, 
Wyoming. 

4. MCC agrees to the following conditions for mining within "Area C" on the 
attached USGS quadrangle map, also described as theN E l/4NE 1/4 of Section 36, 
Tl5N, R73W, Albany County, Wyoming, less Area S-2: 

(i) In the event that MCC desires to mine limestone within Area C it agrees to 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections, Page 2 of 4 pages. 
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notify Mr. Waitkus and LQD of its intent to mine within Area C no later 
than July 1, 2005; 

(ii) In the event that MCC desires to mine limestone within Area C it agrees to 
file an amendment to Permit No. 298C-A5, as amended, to allow such 
mining activity no later than September I, 2005; 

(ii) Any mining within Area C shall take place prior to commencing mining in 
the area identified as Etchepare 7B; and 

(iii) Upon MCC's (l) failure to notify of its intent to mine in Area C within the 
time provided above, (2) failure to apply for a permit amendment for Area 
C within the time provided above, or (3) commencing mining operations 
in Etchepare 78, it agrees that its right to mine within Area C are forfeited 
and that it will not return at any time to mine Area C. 

The Land Quality Division agrees that the above conditions will be made a part of 

MCC's Penni! Application TFN 4 31119. 

HI. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS AGREED TO BUT NOT TO BE INCLUDED AS A 
PART OF THE PERMIT TO BE ISSUED BY DEQ. 

The following agreement is not to become a condition to the permit to be issued by the 

Land Quality Division. In order to anticipate and then resolve problems before they arise the 

parties agree as follows: 

MCC agrees to meet with Mr. Waitkus prior to beginning quarry 
operations within the areas identified as Etchepare 7 A, and Areas 
A and C on the attached quadrangle map, and as often thereafter as 
requested by Mr. Waitkus, to identify and address issues of 
operation which may impact Mr. Waitkus' lot. The meetings shall 
be directed towards identifying and addressing issues and concerns 
of the Mr. Waitkus, including, but not limited to, blasting, night 
mining, fugitive dust, and hydrology and the methods of mitigation 
of the impacts of such, as well as the development of schedules 
aimed at accommodating MCC's operations and Mr. Waitkus= 
enjoyment of his property. 

IV. FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES AND WITHDRAWAL OF OBJECTIONS. 

Based upon the foregoing stipulations, Mr. Waitkus does hereby withdraw his objections 

to the proposed issuance of Land Quality Permit No. TFN 4 3/119 to MCC. 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections, Page 3 qf 4 pages. 
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Waitkus waives any right to an additional hearing on the penni! application before 

the Environmental Quality Council, and agrees that the Land Quality Division may issue a 

penni! to MCC for its application TFN 4 3/119 with the additional conditions stipulated herein in 

Part II. 

This Stipulated Resolution to Objections will become effective when all of the 

undersigned have signed this Stipulation. 

Mountain Cement Company, a Nevada Corporation 

Phiiip A. Nicholas 
Anthony, Nicholas, Tangeman & Yates, LLC 
170 No. 5th 
PO Box 928 
Laramie, WY 82070 
(307) 742-7140 
Attorneys for Applicant Mountain Cement 
Company. . . . J 
Date: /~fl--o · 

1 ~ ; ' 
Brian R. Waitkus 
II 05 E. Canby 
Laramie, Wyoming 
307-745-8723. 

Date:l- OL; :__ __ ~'-----

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections, Page 4 qf 4 pages. 
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Apr 20 06 11:46a DEQ Land Qualit~ Division ??715964 

Bill Hogg 

Land Quality. DEQ 

HerschJer Building. 3nt Floor 

122 West 25th Street 

Cheyenne, WY 82002 

Bill 

--------" 

01.'-?lC. 
p. 1 

/3# -1-/?.0h 

8/3 v~~;f 

ts Aprii2006A•e ~-L2.~G. 

Yesterday 1.,... April 2006 abo 1t mid day I was on my property on Eagles Nest lane in Summit Estates. Th~: 

wind was blowing out ofthe s•>utheast. This wind was sending dust raised at the mine directly toward our 

bouse. I called the mine about 12:30 pm to ask ifthey could something about the problem. 1 was iiven th~: 

cell phone number of Monty Huchanan. I called this number and only got his n1essage service. I left the 

message concerning the fugillvc dust and ask that something be done to mitigate the problem. At 

approximately 12:45 the mine ld oft' a blast at the Echepare 7 mine. The blase sent a very large white cloud 

into the air beading directly~ ardour house. As 1 watched I was a couple of hundred meters from the house 

and noticed the dust started to enter my property. I headed to the house to remove myself from tlte wall of 

white dust coming toward me. Before 1 could get to the house the entire property appeared to be engulfed in 

a fog-lib cloud of dust with a .rtrong smell of explosives. This is a tikeJy violation of their mine pennit and 

I would like once again for son!Cihiog to be done concerning the mining procedures at the Mountain Cement 

Echepare quarries. They seem :o have a problem being held to their own mining procedures. These problems 

~ ~;~ ·" tl1ey move iulo the...., section dim:tly south of our property. 

Brian R. Waitkus 

Box 141l 

Laramie. WY 82073 
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05/19/2006 14:39 FAX 3077424534 . ~. MOUNTAIN CEMENT 
laJ002 

Department of Environmental Quality ~ 
To protec~ conserve and enhance the quality of Wyoming's 

environment for the benefit of current and future generations. 

Dave Freudenthal, Governor John Cerra, Director 

I 

Mr. Monte Buchanan 
Mountain Cement Co. 
5 Sand Creek Road 
Laramie, WY 82070 

May 18, 2006 

RE: Permit l98c, Mountain Cement Company (MCC), Land Quality Division (LQD) 
Notice of Violation (NOV), Docket# 3870-06 

Dear Mr. Buchanan: 

Enclosed you will .find a Notice of Violation issued under the provisions ofW.S. §3S-11-70l(c). 
The Notice ofViolation is based on a blast to shoot limestone that occmred at 12:50 on Aprill7, 
2006. The violation is a result of the failure to follow the approved Mine Plan. 

As a result of our meeting with you and other representatives ofMountain Cement Company (MCC) 
on May I I, 2006, MCC will be required to submit a permit revision to address the issues that were 
identified at that meeting. Please submit that pennit revision no later than May 30, 2006. Should you 
have any questions, please contact Mr. Lowell Spaclanan. 

Respectfully, 

Director 
Deparbnent of Environmental Quality 

Enclosure: Notice of Violation 

cc: Lowell Spaclanan, LQD, District I 
Tom Del Vecchio, MCC 
Pbil Nicholas, Attorney for MCC 

~LJ!/~ 
Richard . .i:Cbanc~ · 
Administrator 
Land Quality Division 

Herschler Building • 122 West 25th Street • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 • bttp;//dag.stata.wy.us 
ADMIN/OUTREACH ABANDONED MINES AIRQUAUTV INDUSTRIAL SmNG LAND QUALITY SOUD & HAZ. WASTE WATER QUAUTY ,.,n.,.. 'n"l'.'MQ1 taon 777-7368 (307) 777-nse (307) m-ns2 (307) 777·71&1 

••••- ·~- CAY777.J\A7:\ • 
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05/19/2006 14:40 FAX 3077424534 MOUNTAIN CEMENT 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
STATE OF WYOMING 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

IN THE MATI'ER OF THE NOTICE OF 
VIOLATION ISSUED TO 
MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY 
ATTEN: MR. MONTE BUCHANAN 
5 SAND CREEK ROAD 
LARAMIE, WY 81070 
PERMIT198C 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

NOTICE 

) 
) 
) 
) DOCKET NO. 3876-06 
) 
) 
) 

Ia! 003 

1. Notice of Violation (NOV) is being sent to you pursuant to Wyoming Statute §35·11· 
70l(c)(i) which requires that a written notice shall be issued in the case of failure to 
correct or remedy an alleged violation. 

2. 'Ibe violations noted on this mine site were self reported by the company to Bill Hogg, 
Land Quality Division (LQD), District I, on April 17, 2006. This mining disturbance is 
located southeast of Laramie Wyoming in Albany County. 

3. A citizen's complaint was received by the LQD in a letter dated April IS, 2006. Both 
Mountain Cement Company (MCC) and the citizen who complained agreed that a blast 
had occurred at 12:50 pm on April17, 2006. The dust cloud generated from the blast was 
blown to the northwest over the residential area to the northwest. This action is in 
violation of the Department ofEnvironmental Quality Act §3S·ll..41S(a) and the blasting 
section of Permit 298C. 

4. MCC's Pmnit 298c has a long history of blasting complaints and has been issued several 
Notices of Violati9n (NOV) for blasts that have affected native lands and residences off 
the permit boundary. After a NOV in 2003, MCC modified the 298c blasting plan. MCC 
committed to not blasting during the noon hour, not blasting when the wind would c:my 
dust onto the residential area and to work with the blasting contractor to reduce NOX 
from future blasts. 

S. This NOV is being issued MCC for their failure to follow the blasting plan contained in 
the 298C permit. The shot occurred during the noon hour, the winds were in the direction 
of the residential area. 

6. Wyoming Statute §3S·ll·90l(a) provides that any person who violates any provision of 
the Environmental Quality Act or any rule, standard, permit, license or variance adopted 
hereunder is liable to a penalty of ten thousand dollars ($10.000.00) for each day of 
violation, which penalty may be recovered in a civil action brought by the Attomey 
General in the name of the People of the State ofWyoming. 
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NOTHING IN T HE NOTICE shaU be interpreted to in any way limit or contravene any other 
remedy available under the Environmental Quality Act, nor shall this NOV be interpreted as 
being a condition precedent to any other enforcement action. 

SIGNED this ;11"- day of ___ 4~-L+-"""~~------'' 200h 

@ tJ.&~.w, rucar? A. Chan~ ' 
Administrator Director 

Department of Environmental Quality Land Quality Division 

Please direct all inquires regarding this Notice of Violation to Mr. Lowell Spackman, District I 
Supervisor, Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality/Land Quality Division, HerscWcr 
Building, 3rd W, 122 West 25th Street, Cheyenne, WY 82002 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 7005" 0 39<? oaal 77.i.C 670-5 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
DOCKET NO. 3798-05 
PERMIT298C 

cc: Lowell Spackman, LQD 
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·. 

RECEIVED 

MAY 1 9 2006 
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DATE: 

TO: 

FAX NUMBER: 

MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY 
.5 Sand Creek Road 
Laramie, WY 82070 
Tel : (307) 745-4879 
Fu: (307) 742--4534 

TIME: 

FROM: 

7 '-f'l , 71 ftJa FAX NUMBER: 

TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: _:f.....__.(INCLUDThJG COVER PAGE) 

COMMENTS: 

(307) 742-4534 

IF YOU DO NOT RECBNE ALL OF THE PAGES, PLEASE CALL (307) 745-4879 AS SOON 
AS POSSIBLE. 

nus MESSAGE IS INTENDED QNLXFOR THE USE OF THE INDIVlDUAL OR BNITrY TO WIDCH IT IS 
ADDRESSED AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PR.I\fiLEGEO AND CONFJDENTI.6L AND 
EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. IF THE READER. OF TIDS MESSAGE IS NOT 
nm INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NO'l'IFIED TIIAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBU­
TION, OR COPYING OF miS COMMUNICATION IS STR.ICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HA VB RECBIVBD 
TIDS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR. PLEASE NOTIFY US BY TELEPHONE AND RETURN THE ORIGI­
NAL MEsSAGE TO US AT TilE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA U.S. POSTAL SERVICE. 
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MPVII4.8 Blasting

Mountain Cement Company must use blasting methods to economically mine limestone.

There could be homes within one-half mile of the activity quarry site.  When blasting, Mountain

Cement Company agrees to comply with the following conditions, as applicable.

A. General Requirements for all Blasting.

The following procedures will be followed for all blasting within the entire permit area:

1. Mountain Cement Company agrees to use blasting methods and techniques as

described in “Rock Blasting & Explosives Engineering” handbook, Per-Anders Persson, Roger

Holmberg, and Jaimin Lee, 1994.

2. The coal surface mine blasting limitations for peak particle velocity and PSI over

pressure contained in Chapter VI of the 1989 Rules and Regulations enforced by the Department of

Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division, will be applicable to this quarry operation.  Those

responsible for performing blasting will be advised of the location of nearby piping and cable and

they will adjust their detonation design appropriately.  See MPVII4.10 and MPVII4.11.

3. Mountain Cement Company will maintain records of its blasting operations which

will be made available to the Administrator or the Land Quality Division upon request. The records

will be available for three years following any blast.

The records shall include the following information:

a. Name of permittee, operator, or other person conducting the blast;

b. Location, date and time of blast;

c. Name, signature, and certification number of blaster conducting blast;

d. Identification, direction and distance, in feet from the nearest blast hole to the

nearest dwelling, outside the amendment area;

e. Type of material blasted;

f. Diameter and depth of holes;

g. Types of explosives used;

h. Number of holes loaded and detonated;

i. Number of delays and number of holes per delay detonated;

j. Maximum weight of explosion detonated within any 8 millisecond period;

k. Initiation systems;
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l. Type and length of stemming; and

m. Direction of prevailing wind at time of blast.

4. Mountain Cement Company will follow the requirements of Wyoming Statutes § 30-

2-501 to 503, Article 5. Shot-Firers, which require that blasting be done under the supervision of a

State certified shot-firer.

5. Mountain Cement Company will attempt to limit  blasting to once per week.  This

will be increased if there is a limestone shortage, quality control problems or overburden to be

blasted. 

6. Mountain Cement will make every effort to avoid blasting when the wind is toward

any residence or residential area.  If a blast is prepared when the wind is not toward a residence or

residential area, the blaster may nonetheless detonate the blast.

7. No blasting will take place prior to sunrise or after sunset.

B. Additional Requirements when Blasting in the Proximity of Homes.

8. When Mountain Cement Company blasts within 500 feet of its permit boundary in

the proximity of homes, the following additional procedures will be followed:

a. The shot pattern will be decreased to an 8 X 8 pattern.

b. The diameter of the holes will be decreased to no more than 3 ½ inches.

c. Mountain Cement Company will use adequate stemming to reduce flyrock.

d. All other procedures will be followed as previously described.

C. Additional Requirements when Blasting Downwind from Homes.

9. When Mountain Cement Company blasts within the SE1/4 of Section 31 T15N,

R72W, or Section 36 T15N, R73W, the following additional procedures will be followed:

a. The weather forecast will be checked by the internet once on the preceding

day and again on the morning of the day planned for blasting.  Mountain

Cement will check the forecast for cloud cover, rain, snow and wind

direction.  Using the internet service, Mountain Cement will use its best

efforts to avoid scheduling blasts during days with the following weather

forecasts: 

Mountain Cement Company will contract the National Weather Service in

Cheyenne, Wyoming within 3 days prior to a scheduled blast and select a day
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for blasting which seeks to avoid the following weather conditions: 

(i) The entire day is forecasted to have low cloud cover which is likely

to create inversion conditions; and

(ii) The wind directions for the entire day is forecasted to blow towards

nearby residences.

b. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to prevent blasting between the

hours of 12:00 AM to 1:00 PM, and after 3:00 PM.

c. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to avoid blasting when there is low

cloud cover or a temperature inversion.

d. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to avoid blasting when the wind is

blowing in the direction of nearby residences.

e. In the event that Mountain Cement is required to set off a blast when the

wind is in the direction of nearby homes, or when there is a temperature

inversion, the Company will call (i) any nearby neighbors expected to be

affected by the blast, and (ii) DEQ-LQD prior to setting off any such blast.

Because there may be times when the foregoing conditions may come into conflict, it shall be

understood that the foregoing conditions are listed in order of priority, with the first being the most

important, and the last being the least important.  Once holes are loaded with blasting material it is

understood that the blast will take place during that same day for the safety of all persons.

MPVII4.9 Airblast Limitations

Airblast shall not exceed the values specified below at any dwelling, public building, school,

church and community or institutional building outside the amendment area, unless the building is

owned by the operator and not leased to another, or, if leased, the lessee signs a waiver relieving the

operator from meeting the limitations.  If necessary to prevent damage the Administrator shall

specify lower maximum allowable airblast levels.

Lower frequency limit of measuring
system, Hz (+/-3dB)

Maximum level
in dB

0.1 Hz or lower-flat response /1 134 peak

2 Hz or lower-flat response 133 peak

6 Hz or lower-flat response 129 peak
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C-weighted, slow response /1 105 peak dBC

/1 Only if approved by the Administrator.

At the request of the Administrator, the operator shall conduct periodic monitoring to ensure

compliance with the airblast standards. The Administrator may request copies of compliance records

when the blasting is in sensitive areas, and in areas where there is reason to believe airblast limits

may be exceed.  The measuring systems shall have a upper-end flat frequency response of at least

200 Hz.

MPVII4.10 Peak Particle Velocity Limitations

Maximum peak particle velocity applicable when seismograph records are provided for each

blast:

Distance (D) from the
 Blasting Site in Feet

/1 Maximum allowable peak
particle velocity (vmax) for ground

vibration in inches/seconds

/2 Scaled distance factor
to be applied without
seismic monitoring

0 to 300 1.25 50

301 to 5,000 1.00 55

5,001 and beyond 0.75 65

/1 Ground vibration shall be measured as the particle velocity.  Particle velocity shall
be  recorded in three mutually perpendicular directions. The maximum allowable
peak particle velocity shall apply to each of the three measurements.

/2 Applicable to the scaled-distance equation of the following paragraph.

An operator may use the scaled-distance equation, W=(D/Ds) squared, to determine the

allowable charge weight of explosives to be detonated in any 8 millisecond period, without seismic

monitoring; where W - the maximum weight of explosives, in pounds; D = the distance, in feet, from

the blasting site to the nearest protected structure; and Ds = the scaled-distance factor, which may

initially be approved by the Administrator using the values for scaled distance factor listed in the

above paragraph.
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Department of Environmental Quality 

To protect, conseNe and enhance the quality of Wyoming's 
environment for the benefit of current and future generations. 

Dave Freudenthal, Governor John Corra, Director 

CERTIFIED MAIL #7004 2890 0004 5120 9506 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Brian R. Waitkus 
80 Eagle Nest Lane 
Laramie, WY 82070 

September 8. 2006 

RE: Mountain Cement Company, TFN 4 4/296, Permit #298C 

Dear Mr. Waitkus: 

We have received your letter regarding the proposed revision of a mining permit to Mountain Cement 
Company. As allowed by Wyoming Statute '35-11-406(k), a section of the Environmental Quality Act, we are 
considering your letter an objection to the issuance of a permit. The Environmental Quality Council will set the 
date, time and place for a hearing. Terri Lorenzen, the Council's Attorney, wi ll· notify you by mail once this has 
been done. 

The hearing will be conducted as a contested case, pursuant to the provisions of the Environmental 
Quality Act, the Administrative Procedure Act, and Department of Environmental Quality Rules of Practice and 
Procedure. To obtain a copy of the Department of Environmental Quality Rules of Practice & Procedure, 
check off the appropriate area of page two and return it to our office at the above address. 

Thank you for your interest in this matter. 

RC:bb 
xc: Terri Lorenzon 

John Burbridge 
John Carra 
Mountain Cement Company 
Lowell Spackman, District 1 

Sincerely, 

~~.~ 
Administrator 
Land Quality Division 

Herschler Building · 122 West 25th Street • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 • http://deg.state.wy.us 
ADMIN/OUTREACH 
(307) 777-7758 

ABANDONED MINES 
(307) 777-6145 

AIR QUALITY 
(307) 777-7391 
FAX 777-5616 

INDUSTRIAL SITING 
(307) 777·7368 

LAND QUALITY 
(307) 777-7756 
FAX 777-5864 

SOLID & HAZ. WASTE 
(307) 777·7752 

WATER QUALITY 
(307) 777-7781 
FAX 777-5973 FAX 777-3610 FAX 777-6462 FAX 777-6937 FAX 777-5973 

I 
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Mr. Brian Waitkus 
Mountain Cement Company, TFN 4 4/296 
Page2 

Please send me a copy of: 

_____ The DEQ Rules of Practice and Procedure 

Mr. Brian R. Waitkus 
80 Eagle Nest Lane 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Signed------------------

I 
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Mr. Rick Chancellor 

Administrator of the Land Quality Division 

Department of Environmental Qua li ty 

Herschler building 

122 West 25th Street 

Cheyenne, Wyommg 82002 

6 Septt::mber 2006 

I am objecting to the proposal of Mountain Cement Co to revise thei r mining sequence of the 298c 

mining permit. The original mining sequence for the Echepare mine locations was to mine rbese locations in 

numerical order from l through 7. A change in the mining sequence was asked for in 2003 and granted in 

2004. Ths sequence change allowed 7 A, C, B and 6 A , B, nearest to Summ it Estates be mined prior to 

mining the remaining Echepare quarries. Mow1tain Cement Co stated that their sole purpose of a ltering the 

mining sequence (mine Echepare 7 A, C, B and 6 A before Echepare 2-5) was to mine the areas closest to 

Summit Estates first. This 2004 change in the mining sequence would more quickly remove problems 

associated with mining close to the housing subdivision. In a January 2004 meeting with Mountain Cement 

Co I was told this mining change would also likely mine Echepare 7 and 6 more quickly than the proposed 

mining time table. Granting a second mine sequence change would extend the time needed to mine Echepare 

quarries 7 and 6. As a result I am objecting to the proposed sequence change. 

Brian R. Waitkus 

80 Eagle Nest Lane 

Laramie, Wyoming 82070 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
LAND QUALITY DIVISION 

STATE OF WYOMING 

IN THE MATTER OF THE MINE PERMIT AMENDMENT 
APPLICATION OF MOUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY, 
TO PERMIT NO. 298C- AS; TFN 4 4/296. 

) 
) 
) 

STIPULATED RESOLUTION TO OBJECTIONS 

I. RECITALS. 

A. Mountain Cement Company (MCC) filed an application with the Department of 

Enviromnental Quality, Land Quality Division (LQD) to revise its mining permit 298C-A5 which was 

first approved January 5, 1998, by the LQD. The purpose of this application is to allow mining tomke 

place in more than one mine sequence area at the same time and to inunediately open a quarry in Mine 

Sequence Area 5. 

B. MCC=s application was protested by Brian R. Waitkus in a letter dated September 6, 

2006. 

C. An informal meeting was held by the LQD on September 21, 2006, at LQD' s offices in 

Cheyenne, Wyoming, to attempt resolution of the protest filed by Mr. Waitkus. The meeting was 

attended by the Administrator and Staff ofLQD, representatives ofMCC, and Mr. Waitkus. Those 

negotiations were there after continued, resulting in this Stipulated Resolution. 

D. MCC and Mr. Waitkus have agreed to the following additional conditions to the 

approval ofMCC=s permit application TFN 4 4/296 which revises MCC's existing Permit 298C-A5. 

E. This Stipulated Resolution resolves the objections raised by Mr. Waitkus to the 

issuance ofTFN 4 4/296. 

F. This Stipulated Resolution to Objections supersedes and replaces the Stipulated 

Resolution to Objections dated Januaryll, 2004, in TFN 4 3/119, entered into between Brian R. 

Waitkus and Mountain Cement Company and approved by the DEQ, resulting in the dismissal of 

Docket No. 03-4805 before the Environmental Quality Council on January II, 2004. 

II. ADDITIONAL STIPULATED CONDITIONS/MODIFICATIONS TO PERMIT. 

Mountain Cement Company agrees that the following additional conditions be made a part of 

TFN 4 4/296 which amends MCC's Permit No. 298C-A5: 

l. The Stipulated Resolution to Objections dated January 11, 2004, in TFN 4 3/119, 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections TFN 4 41296, Page I of 3pages. 
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entered into between Brian R. Waitkus and Mountain Cement Company and any 
conditions adopted by the DEQ implementing that agreement, are hereby rescinded and 
replaced in total by this agreement and the conditions to be adopted herein 

2. MCC agrees that it has completed mining limestone in Area A identified on the 
attached Exhibit A. 

3. MCC agrees that it will not mine limestone within the area identified as "Area S-2" on 
the attached Exhibit A. The foregoing restriction does not prohibit MCC from placing, 
storing or stockpiling topsoil or overburden within Area S-2. 

Area S-2 encompasses an area 200 feet in width along the length of the northern most 
boundary line ofNEl/4NE1/4 ofSection 36, T15N, R73W, Albany County, Wyoming. 

4. Upon issuance of a permit to mine Area C as identified on Exhibit A, MCC agrees to 
commence mining limestone from Area C as soon as practicable. 

5. Foil owing initial disturbance within Area C as identified on Exhibit A, which is 
agreed to be the commencement of removing topsoil and overburden, MCC agrees as 
follows: 

1. To complete all mining of limestone within Area Cas soon as practicable. It 
is understood that MCC will have to mine from other areas within the 
Etchepare Quarry to blend with limestone extracted from Area C; and 

11. To re-seed Area C north ofthe southern most drainage within 12 months of 
completion of mining the limestone north of the southernmost drainage. 

6. Upon issuance ofTFN 4 4/296, MCC may proceed to mine in areas 7B, 6A and 6B at 
the same time. This will allow a greater selection oflimestone for blending with Area 
C limestone, to promote faster consumption of the Area C limestone. 

7. MCC will restrict its mining within the Etchepare Quarry to Areas 7B, 6A and 6B so 
long as MCC is mining within Area C. 

8. Once MCC completes mining within Area C, it may mine from Etchepare 5 as allowed 
by TFN 4 4/296. 

9. MCC agrees that all crushing operations will be conducted outside of Area C as 
identified on Exhibit A. 

I 0. In the event that MCC conducts screening operations within Area C, it shall construct a 
I 0 foot high topsoil/overburden berm on the north end of its quarry operation and shall 
position its screening operations south of the berm 

II. It is understood that MCC's Application to ModifY its Permit is granted subject to 
these additional conditions. 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections TFN 4 4/296, Poge 2 of3pages. 
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MCC agrees that the above conditions will be made a part of its Permit Application TFN 4 

4/296. 

m. FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES AND WITHDRAWAL OF OBJECTIONS. 

Based upon the foregoing stipulations, Mr. Waitkus does hereby withdraw his objections to the 

proposed issuance of Land Quality Permit No. TFN 4 4/296 to MCC. 

Mr. Waitkus waives any right to an additional hearing on the permit application before the 

Environmental Quality Council, and agrees that the Land Quality Division may issue a permit to MCC 

for its application TFN 4 4/296 with the additional conditions stipulated herein in Part II. 

This Stipulated Resolution to Objections may be signed in counterparts by the undersigned. It 

will become effective when all of the undersigned have signed a copy ofthis Stipulation. 

--~~~tain Cement Co\ny, a Nevada Corporation 

t~~>! r) \), ;) c·(__~·-
Philip A. Nicho\as 
Anthony, Nicholas & Tangeman, LLC 
170 No. 5th 
PO Box 928 
Laramie, WY 82070 
(307) 742-7140 
Attorneys for Applicant Mountain Cement Company 
Date: !{l· ( (, ·-or;; 

80 Eagle Nest Lane 
Laramie, Wyoming 82070 
307-745-8723. 

Stipulated Agreement to Resolve Objections TFN 4 41296, Page 3 of3pages. 
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Department of Environmental Quality 

To protect, conserve and enhance the quality of Wyoming's 
environment for the benefit of current and future generations. 

Dave Freudenthal, Governor John Carra, Director 

Necember 1, 2006 
Mr. Monte Buchanan 
Mountain Cement Co. 
5 Sand Creek Road 
Laramie, WY 82070 

RE: TFN 4 4/296, Approval to Incorporate the "Stipulated Resolution of Objections" into Permit 
298C, Mountain Cement Company, Change No. 26 

Dear Mr. Buchanan: 

As a result of an objection by Brian Waitkus to the required public notice for the proposed sequence 
change, a "Stipulated Resolution of Objections" was signed by Mr. Waitkus and Mr. Phil Nicholas on 
October 16, 2006. This agreement changed the proposed sequence revision to make it acceptable to Mr. 
Waitkus. Therefore, the proposed sequence change under TFN 4 4/296 has been negated. The objection 
was dis1nissed in the Environmental Quality Council (EQC) Order of Dismissal dated Nov 13, 2006. vVith 
the approval of the Form 11, a condition has been placed on the Form 11 to ensure the stipulated resolution 
is included in the permit. This condition states: 

The text and map changes contained in the mining sequence revision (TFN 4 4/296) will not be 
inserted into the approved permit. The "Stipulated Resolution of Objections" that was signed by 
Philip Nicholas and Brian Waitkus on October 16, 2006 will be attached to this permit and the 
sequence described in the agreement will govern the mining operation sequence. The previous 
Stipulated Resolution of Objections dated January 11, 2004 has been superseded and replaced by 
this new resolution. As a result of this resolution, the mining sequence in the permit must be 
updated to agree with the sequenced agreed to within the resolution. MCC is required to submit a 
mine plan sequence revision within ten (1 0) days of the date of this approval. 

The changes that will occur as a result of this conditioned sequence revision must be reflected in the 
Amendment "C" application (TFN 4 2/220) before it can be approved. Also, depending upon the timing of 
the approval for the Etchepare fueling proposal and the Amendment C application, any inconsistencies 
must be addressed in the package that will be approved last. 

If you should have any questions regarding this letter, please feel free to contact Bill Hogg at 307-777-
7057. 

Sincerely, a /l /J ~ 

Chane~ 
Ad m trator 
Land Quality Division 

c: Brian Waitkus 
Phil Nicholas 

Herschler Building • 122 West 25th Street • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 • http://deg.state.wy.us 
ADMIN/OUTREACH 
(307) 777-7758 

ABANDONED MINES 
(307) 777-6145 

AIR QUALITY 
(307) 777-7391 
FAX 777-5616 

INDUSTRIAL SITING 
(307) 777-7368 

LAND QUALITY 
(307) 777-7756 
FAX 777-5864 

SOLID & HAZ. WASTE 
(307) 777-7752 

WATER QUALITY 
(307) 777-7781 
FAX 777-5973 FAX 777-3610 FAX 777-6462 FAX 777-6937 FAX 777-5973 
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NOTE: Submit two (2) copies one of which must be an original. 
Do not make corrections to this form after printing. Forms bearing strikeouts, ink changes, etc will not be accepted 

STATE OF WYOMING 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

LAND QUALITY DIVISION 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT REVISION (, 

An application for a permit revision shall be required whenever the operator proposes to consJ)dJtaa 
revised mining or reclamation operation, as defined in Chapter I, Section 2, of the Coal and Noncoal 
Land Quality Rules and Regulations. An application for a permit revision shall be filed with the 
Administrator before the date on which the operator expects to conduct the revised mining or 
reclamation operation. 

1. Name, telephone number, and mailing address of applicant: 
Name: Mountain Cement Company Telephone: (307)745-4879 Fax: (307)742-
4534 

5 Sand Creek Road ; Laramie WY 82070 

2. Name, telephone number, and address of the agent of the applicant to whom any notices under the 
provisions of the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or Land Quality Division Rules and 
Regulations adopted thereunder may be sent: 

Monte Buchanan. Ouany Technician (307)745-4879 ext. 121 
5 Sand Creek Road Laramie , WY 82070 

3. The permit number and date approved: # 298C , 03/26/1975 

4. Brief description of permit revision: 
Pit #5 Mine Sequence Change-- MCC will mine the Etchepare pit # 5 (E5) area in conjunction 

with E7 disturbance pit (section 31). This will allow MCC to build feed inventory, blend various 
chemistries for the plant~ and provide mineral deposit alternatives to ensure the availability of the 
product. This will also allow MCC to balance high cost mining with low cost mining and stabilize the 
budget. 

5. 

Approved 

Estimated Revision Increase or (Decrease) 

Total 

Permit Acres 

3373.3 

0.0 

3373.3 

Acreage to Affect 

6.4 7 ._DB.. 
0.0 

__ ...;...64...;.;:;;:.] .08 

6. Attach revised permit elements and an index indicating what parts of the approved permit are effected 
by this revision. The revised elements and index shall be sufficient to fulfill the requirement of 
Chapter 13, Section __ 1. (d) for coal permittees or Chapter VII, Section 1. (d) for non coal permittees. 

7. If the applicant is a _partnership, _association, x __ corporation or _limitied liability 
company and the revision is for changes to the name and addresses of all managers,. p~ners and,. 
executives directly responsible for operations in this State, complete the followin~: .. ><·---:;;~ .. 

Name: Address: _; _, WY _: · · -~~\ · . 
Title: Phone No. - ~\~j ' 
Date of Appointment: j~~ 1~~~ i-:.) 

Name: Address: _; WY ~-) c·~·~e\'.J6~ ~~:~ 
-' ; \ · · ', . \\\1 \)I'IISIO!I . ~Cv 

Title: Phone No. \_·1•\\ Quul., .}k' 

Date of Appointment: __ 

Name: --
Title: __ 
Date of Appointment: __ 

Name: __ 
Title: --
Date of Appointment: __ 

Form 11, Rev. 6/00 
Page I of3 

Address:_; 
Phone No. 

WY 

.!\; 
d.JUi 

._./ "tc:-, 
m::st.U . _, 

_, Address:_; 
Phone No. __ 

WY 

PermitNo. cYis-'C. ·-!}~ 
Temporary Filing No./(). 9G,, 

I 
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8. The provisions ofthis permit revision are severable, and if any provision ofthe permit revision or the 
application of any provision of this permit revision to any circumstance, is held invalid, the 
application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this permit revision shall 
not be affected thereby. 

9. For surface coal mining operations, right of entry to or inspection of any operation, premises, 
records, or equipment shall not require advance notice. 

StateofWY 

County of Albany 

FINAL SWORN STATEMENT 

) 

)ss 

) 

I Stuart Tomlinson being duly sworn on my oath that I am the applicant (President or Vice 
President if the applicant is a corporation) for the foregoing permit revision; that I have read the said 
application and fully know the contents thereof; that all statements contained in the permit revision 
application are true, correct, and complete to my best knowledge and belief, by execution of this 
statement I certify that Mountain Cement Company , applicant, or entities controlled by or under 
common control with the applicant has the right and power by legal estate owned to mine from the land 
for which this permit revision is desired; that applicant or entities controlled by or under common 
control with the applicant has not forfeited, or is not involved in forfeiture proceedings for, a bond 
posted for reclamation purposes; and if a surface coal mining application, that applicant or entities 
controlled by or under common control with the applicant has paid the reclamation fees for this and all 
coal mining operations under the jurisdiction of PL. 95-87 as required by Title IV of that law; and that 
applicant or entities controlled by or under common control with the applicant has not had any Federal 
or State coal mining permits suspended or revoked in the five years preceding the date of this 
application; and by completion and submission of this application, hereby give consent to allow the 
Director, the Administrator and/or his authorized representatives, at reasonable times and upon 
presentation of appropriate credentials, to enter upon and have access to any and all lands covered by 
this permit and amendments thereto and to inspect and copy any records or documents, obtain or 
monitor any samples or sampling, for any activities associated with the operation and permit. 

Dated this J;J#: day of July 2006 

(Corporate Seal) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by 
j;}M day of ~ , 20_. 

Witness my hand and official 
seal. 

(Notary Seal) 

Form 11, Rev. 6/00 
Page 2 of3 

(Name printed or typed) 

My Commission Expires: /3 77cHc .. ~)Z. 

Permit No. c2 2 8 C!- I< I.e 
Temporary Filing No. ~ 4fj::t9(o 
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This is to certify that I have examined the foregoing application and do hereby grant the same subject to 
the following limitations and conditions: 

This permit revision grants only the right to affect the land described in Appendix "C" of the original 
permit and amendments. Any condition/special condition attached to approval of this revision shall 
supersede and/or replace any conflicts with the original permit, amendments, coal renewals or any other 
revision. 

The text and map changes contained in the mining sequence revision (TFN 4 4/296) 
will not be inserted into the approved permit. The "Stipulated Resolution of 
Objections" that was signed by Philip Nicholas and Brian Waitkus on October 16, 2006 
will be attached to this permit and the sequence described in~the~~greement··~ill 
govern the mining operation sequence. The previous Stipulated Resolution of Objections 
dated January 11, 2004 has been superseded and replaced by this new resolution. As a 
result of this resolution, the mining sequence in the permit must be updated to agree 
wnth the sequenced agreed to within the resolution. MCC is required to submit a mine 
plan sequence revision within ten (10) days of ;t!)e date of thts ap-proval. 

! 

I 

!Vn n ~-~ Approved~ La ~Approved:-+-+--...,---------
Administrator T 'Director 
Land Quality Division Departme t Enviroqmental Quality 
Department of Environmental Qu 

Form 11, Rev. 6/00 
Page 3 of3 

I 

i 

Effective Date: ~r·- J -o4.:, 
Permit No. ,;_ q~C ·fj t, 
TemponuyFiling"f'lo. = ~qb 

! 
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Governor 

Dear Mr. 

We have received yoL r letter the amendment of a mining to 
Cement Company. I clarified d Jring a telephone conversation on October 9, 2007, that your comments 
be regarded as objections to the permit amendment application. as allowed 
§35-11-406{1<). section of the Act, we are letter an OO!ect.lon 
issuance of a permit. The Envi ·onmental Quality Council will set the date, time and place for a 

RAC:bb 
xc: 

the Council's will you mail once this has been 

Terri Lorenzen 
John 
John Carra 
Mountain Cement 
Lowell Dis·:rict 

AiR CIJAUTY 
l!if\7\ 777-7?.!11 

nicholas
Text Box
Exhibit 12
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may 

open 

sandstone? 
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on 

any 

movement 

3. 

is more than 1 7 years 
from the 1960 to 1980s 

Laramie '!>, ......... n....r 

An accurate 
maximum wind gusts in associ(;tion with direction is vitally important when consltaermtg 
amount of fugitive dust or NOx that could local residences. to date and current cHJma·to1cJglca1 

data are for the potential and blasting issues. 

some rracrures .... u . .l.J'-·u..u 

overburden. 
this area became known? 

notify 
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and wanner conditions. 

was to done on a From 
has not been completed on quarterly basis but appears to 

I would like to see a statement in the mine Cement 

that the reclamation of the area should start within one year from the 

area. 
watcher 

to the 

does nest within an area affected, the US. Fish and 
cnirlla:cte·ct... Use area other interest will also 

wild]ife blCIIOSUSt 

for new or 
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March 

Surface Water Quality. 
states" Jv!CC not specifically collected surface water au.cztll'V susz'Je111ded Sl<:atJrnt:IU 

any watersheds affected i1y the quarry, as have not been nn~r:>J .... ,Pn TJ"'F'I'J,ua·n 

amendment area." Mountain Cement has been in years 
resulted in flows. In addition to this Cement sited sediment from 
their mine area to flow the~e a rain event. Ifthe company does not look for the 
channel it can not be observed. 

statement is 

18. 

one 
statement. 

~~~-~~"~"')' land use will be livestock grazing, which is consistent with the pre-
... -Anuuu;.;;.. ~~.nd was stated to be used and 

be in 

are 
be re-written to correct this 
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20. was noted,...,.., ......... ,,... ................ 
area "C". Roads created M<,untain '-'~u.n.-u~, 
construction become permanen: used by 

wu•u"'""'· Prior to Mouutain Cement actions no constructed or user created roads existed in area 
~·c'~. Mountain Cement etc. are beginning to create two track paths/roads. 
would like to see Mountain Cement all roads/two 

''C", 
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ANTHONY, NICHOLAS & TANGEMAN, LLC 
AITORNEYS AT LAW 

PHILIP A. NICHOLAS* 

JEFF ANTHONY, CPA** 
JASON M. TANGEMAN*** 
STACY ROSTAD*** 

MITCHELL H. EDWARDS 

*ALSO ADMmED IN COLORADO AND OREGON 
**ALSO ADMITTED IN COLORADO AND NEBRASKA 
***ALSO ADMmED IN COLORADO 

170 NORTH FIFTH STREET 

P.O. Box928 
LARAMIE, WYOMING 82070-0928 

TELEPHONE (307) 742-7140 
FAX (307) 742-7160 

January 24, 2008 

Mr. Lowell Spackman 
Ms. Ramona Christensen 
Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality 
Land Quality Division 
Herschler Building 
122 West 25th Street 
Cheye~~e,VVY 82002 

RE: Section 36 Area C Limestone Quarry; Permit 298C-A 7; TFN 4 2/220 

Dear Mr. Spackman & Ms. Christensen: 

Pursuant to DEQ's approval letter, approving MCC's permit amendment application, dated 
December 20, 2007, and pursuant to Form 1, Conditions, please find the enclosed two copies ofFonn 11, 
together with index sheets and revision package which was part of Mountain Cement Company's 
Response to Mr. Waitkus's objections and which are to be included in MCC's 298C-A7 pennit. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (307) 742-7140. 

Sincerely, 

tchell \dwards ~~ ~=,Nicholas & Tangeman, LLC 
Attorney's for Mountain Cement Company 

Enclosures 

cc: Mountain Cement Company 

nicholas
Text Box
Exhibit 14
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NOTE: HO NOT CUT OR MODIFY THIS 
FORl"\'t Submit two (2) copies. Page 
1 & 2 must be initialed and dated 
where indicated. Signature preferred 

blue ink. 

State of Wyoming 
Hepartment of Environmental Quality 

I..and Quality Division. 
Application. for Permit Revision 

An application a permit revision shall be required whenever the operator proposes to conduct a revised 
mining or r.:~cb11ation operation, as defined in Chapter 1, Section 2, of the Coal and Noncoal Land Quality 
Division (LQD) Rules and Regulations. An application tor a permit revision shall be filed with the 
Adrninistrator before the date on which the operator expects to conduct the revised mining or reclamation 
operation. 

1. Name. rnaihng addre~s and phone number of applicant_ Mountain ~~~~_ll_t~_omr=_ll~-~-~~-r:.9 __ ~re~~<_~~~-d, Laram~~-----

___ \ffiiJJDJlm:U22DIO ____ Phone~l3DI)7 4~48lkL...£2.&1J07LZ:l2-4534 --~----··--·~·--·-·-----·---------------------~ 

2. Na:rne, mailing address phone nu.mber of the agent of the applicant to whom_ any notices under the 
provisions of the Wyondng Environmental Quality Act or the LQD Rules and Regulations adopted 
therell_nder m·_iy be sent: ___ J::-:1!...,~@ K~rse.Y_.{address same as ~lboy.§..l.;_Mf. SJQY..~_9?Qigti.§ddr~ss §f.J11e a§2bove)_ ___ _ 

4. Brief description of pennit revision: Perrnit Revision pursuant to~onditLo_r1 on_ Fom1 1 ("12-2_()-0l}_to incorporate the 

,;;: 
J. 

_ .ctuith.l."::'.ii_,w.:nr.l.l!:i.a,1.iLl~lYJ.ruJilL?.ln..~~eJmollia.a~'i.Ell®nnli~lll~21::.Ql.~.1uJ;1L...\l\tztltiius~tliac.lli:!E!lillefon;t.ECX~.~--· ___ __ _ 

Approved 

llevisiort 
Increase or 
Decrease 

,..fotal 

0 

Acreage to i\.ffect Surface Ownership Acreag<; 

0 

0 

680.98 

6. Attach revJsed permit eiernents and an index indicating what parts of the approved pennit are affecte1..l by 
this revised elements and index shall be sufficient to tbe requi.rernent of Chapter 13, 

coal pennittees or Chapter VII, Section l(d) for noncoal pem1ittees. 

7. If is a Partnership, Association, Corporation (circle one) and the revision is ft1r changes to the 
name and addresses of all managers, partners and executives directly responsible for operations in this State, 
complete foJJmving: 
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8. 

N arne: ~~~·· p~~:l~-~J~oco!:~E._ _______ ,_~~------
Title:_J::r(;!sideQL __ ~--···-·--·--· 

15,2008 

Name: .~l~I.:. P~~: Ar~2rson ~~--~----~---------· 
Titi e: _ ,[:j<_ecutiYS'_)UgJ_f're:fu,i§f!.L. _____ . -· ---------

Date of Appoin.tment:._~Decerr~ber 15, 2007 

Date 

The provisions of this pennit revision are severable, and if any provision of the pennit revision or the 

., 
sucn 
thereby. 

any provision of this perrnit revision to any circumstance is held invalid, the application of 
to other circumstances, and the remainder of t.his permit revision shall not be affected 

9. lor su.rfa<ee coal l!n.ining operations, right of ently to or inspection of any operation, premises, records, or 
equipment shall not require advance notice. 

R.ev. 5/06 
Page 2 of4 

E tlecti ve Date: c----~-~~±~.~~.-~-~~~~-~--­
Pen:nit 
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State of --~ryo!~'~L~---~~·-·----~--~) 
)ss 

County o:( ___ ~-------~---~---~----~--J 

Flnal Sworn Statement 

I being duly sworn on my oath that I am the applicant 
(President or Vice President if the applicant is a corporation) for the foregoing pennit revision; that I have read 
the said application and fully know the contents thereof; that all statements contained in the pemlit revision 
application are true, cmTect, and complete to the best of knowledge and belief, by execution of this statement I 
certi(y that ____ t~l~~!El~~in g~::':!~~~f:::~'!lP3!J).' ____________________ -~' applicant, or entities controlled by or under 
cornmon the applicant has the right and power by legal estate to mir;_e from the land for 
which this perm.it revision is desired; that applicant or entities controHed by or under common control with the 
applicant has not t(Jrfeited, or is not involved in forfeiture proceedings for, a bond posted for reclamation 
purposes; and a s~rface coal mining open1tio:n, that applicant or entities controlled by or under common 
control with the applic?.nt has paid the reclamation fees for this a11d all coal mining operations under the 
jurisdiction 95°·87 as required by Title IV of that law; and that applicant or entities controlled by or under 
common control with the applicant has not had any Federal or State coal mining pennits suspended or revoked 
in the -five (5) years preceding the date of this application; and by cornpletion and submission of this 
application, hereby give consent to allow the Director, the Administrator and/or his authorized representatives, 

and upon pre3entation of appropriate credentials, to enter upon and have access to any and 
all by tbis and amendments thereto and to inspf:ct and copy any records or documents, 

any samples or sampling, fi)r any activities associated with the operation and perrnit. 
~ 

Dated this~.:_~Jtttfclay of :J~~!N ~~~:' ~--~----' 20 & ~""· . 

,.---...C: 
'~'· .l -~·-"-'-~"'-'··""-"'"--'-4·~~--~·------' 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

,a.s~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
"" l~ C0unty vf St7jt8 or t~ 

~ AH1s~ y ·Nyomir~g a 
~;~;_;~~~t2i,2(\";! 

Form 11 

. i{) ~/'~~2·.:' 
Signature 

.il 
/ l#4vi.() ,~t.1 1 1 ,/Jf'.('l7..,f:,f; p; 

~---~-- __ _ll.t::!::::::.J:;-:.~-.--~---~----~~----
Name (Printed or typed) 

My Commission 
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The State of \Vyoming ) 
)ss 

Department of Environmental Quality ) 

This is to certifY that I have examined the foregoing application and do hereby grant the same subject to the 
D)Howing and conditions. 

This permit revision grants only the right to affect the land described Appendi;;( "C" of the original pt~n:nit 
and amendments" Any condition/special condition attached to approval revision shaH supersede and/or 
replace any conflicts with original permit, amendment, coal renewals or any other revision. 

Approved:~~--~~~~-------~-~-,----~-_____ _ 
Administrator Director 
Land Quality Division Department of Environ.-•nental Quality 
Dr,~partment of Environmental Quality 

fo:rrn 11. 
Rev" S/06 
Page 4 of4 
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9INDID:X SHEICI' 'FOR MINE PERMIT AMENDMENTS OR REVISIONS Page 1 of2 

January 23, 2008 
TFN 

MINE COMPANY NAME: Mount~n Cement Company MINE NAME: Sec 36 Area C Limestone Quarry~---· . PERMIT NO. 298C-A7 

Statement: l, Steve Cooley, an authorized representative for Mountain Cement Company declare that only the items listed on this and all consecutively 
numbered Index Sheets are intended as revisions to the current permit document. In the event that fl~~rf$anges inad~ertently occuned due to this 
revision, those unintentional alterations will not be considered approved. Please initial and date. J/;~~'---c_l :?3 .;:;.;;_::;! 

N.QIES; l) Include all revision or change elements and a brief description of or reason for each revision element. 
2) List all revision or change elements in sequence by volume number; number index sheets sequentially as needed. 

Description: Mine and Reclamation Plan; Area C Limestone Quarry; Changes in Response to DEQ approval letter and J:i'orm 1 condition 

VOLUME 
NUMBER 

~---------··-··--

1 

l . 
~~~~pu~:-----·-
1 to Mine 

fo 

1-·-----·-------.. ·--· 
I Application fo 
I to Mine 

II ______ _ 

Application 

~~~~--~:·~ 

·Permit 

I to Mine 

A;~u~~~i~~:~~-
---

to 
L_. ___________ .. __ _ 

PAGE, MAP OR OTHER PAGE, MAP OR OTHER 
PERMIT ENTRY TO BE PERMIT ENTRY TO BE 

REMOVED ADDED 

----~-~,--·-~~~--

-·--~-

DVHI6- ] 

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE 

Remove DVHI6-1 and replace with new DVHI6-l 

··-~--~- ·~-~~-.--·~---·-·~ -~~-~~·--~· --·-· --··------------~--~·-+------------·-·--·-··-~-------~-----------·-· ~------------·~--------1 

DVUH 

--~-~~ -~-~-~~-

---

6 Remove DVlH6-6 and replace with new DV IH6-6 

---~------~------------.---------·-+-----

-6 thru MPVHI-8 

·14 

Remove MPVHI-6 thru MPVHI-8 and replace with new 
MPVlU-6 thru MPVIU-8 

Remove MPVHI-14 and replace with new MPVHl-14 

---··--·--------·--~---------------L·--·---~---- .... ·- ---···-··-~·----~-~----~--~--~------~~------~----~---------~--~...1 
lndex Sheet !or LQD Permitting Changes 
Updates: SF2/RV 7195; RC 9199; RC 09/00 
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0INDEX SHEET FOR PERMIT AMENDMENTS OR REVISIONS Page 2 of2 

January 23, 2008 
TFN 

MINE COMPANY NAME:.Mm!nt~i:q,!;_ement Company MINE NAME: Sec 36 Area C Limeston~~--- PERMIT NO. 298C-A7 

I, Steve Cooley, an authmized representative for Mountain Cement Company declare that only the items listed on this and all consecutively 
numbered Index Sheets are intended as revisions to the current pennit document. In the event that't:l1~1tn~Gb.anges inad_yettently occurred due to this 
revision, those unintentional alterations will not be considered approved. Please initial and date. J2'J ( · _L ___ A::-~:'5 

NO .. :H:;;S;. 1) Include all revision or change elements and a brief description of or reason for each revision element '- ~/-
2) List aH revision or change elements in sequence by volume number; number index sheets sequentially as needed. 

Description: Mine and Reclamation Plan; Area C Limestone Quarry; Changes in Response to DEQ approval letter and Form 1 condition 

VOLUME 

NUMBER 

PAGE, MAP OR OTHER PAGE, MAP OR OTHER 
PERMIT ENTRY TO BE PERMIT ENTRY TO BE 

REMOVED ADDED 

r--0--,·-----~~--,-----~--~-~--~~~~~--~--~~~---~--~--~·-~---~---~-~-~~-~--~------------· --·---

Application for Pe:rmit 
to Mine 

RPVUI-H RPVIH··ll 

~~----~,-~~~~~---~~~~~------~--<~-+--K----~-~--~-~-~-~~~------~~------------------' 

Application for Permit 
to Mine 

MPVIHA-1 MPVHIA-1 

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE 

Remove RPVIH-11 and replace with new RPVIH-11 

Remove MPVIHA-l and replace with new MPVIH A-1 

L-~--~--~---~~------~-~--·~--,--~·-l·~·----~~~--~-~-~~-~~<~---...1....-----~~-~-·-~--~-~·-~~~~~---~~----~--~---------~-~--~~-~--"~~-----~-~--~----~~--~-~~-------------~---~--~~-=-~~--· 

Index Sheet lor LQD Pennitting Changes 
Updates: SF2/RV 7/95; RC 9/99; RC 09100 
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Appendix DVHI6 

Hydrology 

DVIII6.1 Introduction 

The Section 36 Area C Limestone Quarry is located Albany of 

Wyoming approximately 7 miles southeast of Laramie. Access to the site is way of 

Howe Lane Road to the Etchepare mining pits, and then from there, west to the i\rea C 

Limestone Quarry. The permit area is found in the NEY4NE1;;4 of section 36,, 5N, 

R73W, of the 6th P.M. The proposed expansion amendment occupies approximately 40 

acres but the affected/disturbance will be only about 33.9 acres or less. 

Jim Orpet of Intermountain Resources compiled land use information for the 

Etchepare Amendment/Permit application (A5 amendment, Appendix DVII6) during 

October 1995 (revised ll/25/96). This information was approved in 1998 and is found in 

the Etchepare Amendment/Permit application. Because the Area C Limestone Quarry 

(amendment A7) is located adjacent to the Etchepare Quarry (amendment AS), the 

Appendix DVII6 was used as a source and reference. 

The limestone bed to be mined dips gently to the west. Portions of the bed are 

covered with overburden (sandstone) while the remaining areas are exposed cap rock 

Ephemeral drainages (E9 and El2) bound the southern mining area on the north and 

south sides, and ephemeral drainage E 12 bounds the northern mining area on the south 

side. Topographical relief across the entire amendment area ranges from 7600 feet 

west to 7740 feet in the east boundary. 

Permit 298C-A7 NEV4NEY4 
Section 36 Area C LS Quarry 
Revised: October 29,2007 

DVIII6-l 

TFN 4 2/220 
Approved: 
Change No .. ___ _ 



PAGE 72

Hydrology Appendix DVIII6 

DVIII6.2.4 Groundwater Summary 

Mining will occur in the Casper Formation, extracting exposed limestone outcrops from the 

relatively near-surface. Mining will take place 180-200 feet above the piezometric surface of the 

groundwater. Due to the hydraulic conductivity of this formation, water will readily travel down dip, 

until it reaches a point where the voids in the formation are saturated with water. The Area C Limestone 

Quarry is identified to be located in the recharge zone of the Casper Aquifer. 

The water from these wells is hard, with a fairly neutral pH, and low concentrations of total 

dissolved solids. Nitrate and sulfate concentrations are low. Alkalinity is at or near the limit for what is 

considered good drinking water. The overall water quality is good for human consumption, as is 

generally the case with water from the Casper Formation. 

Impacts to the groundwater should me minimal, because of 1) the relatively shallow depth of 

mining activity, 2) the relatively near surface limestone extraction, and 3) mining will not occur within 

any saturation zones (180-200 feet above the piezometric surface). Please refer to section DVIII6.6 for 

discussion of any possible impacts to groundwater. 

DVIII6.3 Surface Water 

DVIII6.3.1 Drainage Basin Description 

The Area C Limestone Quarry is primarily located in the central area of two identified 

watershed/drainage basins, formed from the identified E9 and El2 channels (identified from the 

Etchepare amendment). Please refer to Map DVIII6-2 for channel locations. Only about 9.0 acres of the 

area will primarily be affected. The general slope of the area is about 8-10%. The aspect of the 

watershed is predominately west. 

All channels (E9 & E12) flow ephemerally to the west. Because of the ephemeral nature ofthese 

streams, they are considered as class 4 streams by the WDEQ (Wyoming Department of Environmental 

Quality 1990). In general, these channels demonstrate little lateral development, but many channels have 

formed deep gullies and canyons, with ledges forming natural drops, and pools. 

Ultimately, the water from each watershed discharges into the Larmie River. The E9 and E12 

channels make it to the Laramie River via Gilmore Gulch. 

Permit 298C-A 7 NE~NE~ 
Section 36 Area C LS Quarry 
Revised: October 29, 2007 

DVIII6-6 

TFN 4 2/220 
Approved: ___ _ 
Change No. ___ _ 
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MPVIH-4.4 Blasting 

Mountain Cement Company must use blasting methods to economically mine limestone. There are homes 

within one-half mile of the Area C quarry site. When blasting, Mountain Cement Company agrees to comply with 

the following conditions, as applicable. 

A. General Requirements for all Blasting. 

The following procedures will be followed for all blasting within the entire area: 

1. Mountain Cement Company agrees to use blasting methods and techniques as described in Rock 

Blasting & Explosives Engineering handbook, Per-Anders Persson, Roger Holmberg, and Jaimin Lee, 1994. 

2. The coal surface mine blasting limitations for peak particle velocity and PSI over pressure 

contained in Chapter 6 of the Rules and Regulations enforced by the Department of Environmental Quality, Land 

Quality Division, will be applicable to this quarry operation. Blasting contractors will be advised by MCC of the 

location of nearby structures and they will adjust their detonation design appropriately. (See MPVIH 4.5 and 

MPVHI4.6). 

3. Mountain Cement Company will maintain records of its blasting operations which will be made 

available to the Administrator or the Land Quality Division upon request. The records will be available for three 

years following any blast. 

The records shall include the following information: 

a. Name of permittee, operator, or other person conducting the blast; 

b. Location, date and time ofblast; 

c. Name, signature, and certification number of blaster conducting blast; 

d. Identification, direction and distance, in feet from the nearest blast hole to the 

nearest dwelling, outside the amendment area; 

e. Type of material blasted; 

f. Diameter and depth of holes; 

g. Types and amounts of explosives 

h. Number of holes loaded and detonated; 

1. Number of delays and number of holes per delay detonated; 

J. Maximum weight of explosion detonated within any 8 millisecond period; 

k. Initiation systems; 

l. Type and length of stemming; 

m. Direction of prevailing wind and weather conditions at time of blast. 

n. Burden and spacing distances with hole diameter and depth; 

o. Total weight of explosives per hole: and 

p. A shot diagram will be attached to the report. 

Permit 298C-A 7 NE'I4NE'i4 
Section 36 Area C LS Quarr<; 
Submitted: October 29,2007 

MPVIH-6 

TFN 4 2/220 
Approved: ___ _ 
Change No. ___ _ 
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4. Mountain Cement Company will follow the requirements of Wyoming Statutes§ 30-2-501 to 503, 

Article 5. Shot-Firers, which require that blasting be done under the supervision of a State certified shot-firer. 

5. Mountain Cement Company will attempt to limit blasting to once per week. This will be 

increased if there is a limestone shortage, quality control problems or overburden to be blasted. 

6. Mountain Cement will make every effort to avoid blasting when the wind is toward any residence 

or residential area. If a blast is prepared when the wind is not toward a residence or residential area, the blaster may 

nonetheless detonate the blast. 

7. No blasting will take place prior to sunrise or after sunset. 

B. Additional Requirements when Blasting in the Proximity of Homes. 

When Mountain Cement Company blasts within 500 feet of its permit boundary in the proximity of homes, 

the following additional procedures will be followed: 

a. The shot pattern will be decreased to an 8 X 8 pattern; 

b. The diameter of the holes will be decreased to no more than 3 1f2 inches; 

c. Mountain Cement Company will use adequate stemming to reduce flyrock; and 

d. All other procedures will be followed as previously described. 

C. Additional Requirements when Blasting Downwind from Homes. 

When blasting occurs in the permit area the following additional procedures will be followed: 

a. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to prevent blasting between the hours of 12:00 AM 

to 1:00PM, and after 3:00PM; 

b. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to avoid blasting when there is low cloud cover or a 

temperature inversion; 

c. Mountain Cement will use its best efforts to avoid blasting when the wind is blowing in the 

direction of nearby residences; and 

d. In the event that Mountain Cement is required to set off a blast when the wind is in the 

direction of nearby homes, or when there is a temperature inversion, the Company will call (i) any nearby neighbors 

expected to be affected by the blast, and (ii) DEQ-LQD prior to settin off any such blast. 

Because there may be times when the foregoing conditions may come into conflict, it shall be understood 

that the foregoing conditions are listed in order of priority, with the first being the most important, and the last being 

the least important. Once holes are loaded with blasting material it is understood that the blast will take place during 

that same day for the safety of all persons. 

MPVTII-4.5 Air Blast Limitations 

Airblast at any dwelling, public building, school, church and community or institutional building located 

outside of the permit area shall not exceed the values specified below unless the building is owned by the operator 

and is not leased to another, or, if leased to another, the lessee has signed a waiver relieving the operator from 

meeting the airblast values. If necessary to prevent damage the Administrator shall specify lower maximum 

Permit 298C-A 7 NEY4NEY4 
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allowable airblast levels. 

Lower frequency limit of measuring system, Hz 
Maximum level in dB 

3dB) 

0.1 Hz or Iower-f1at response" 

2 Hz or lower-flat response 

6Hz or lower-t1at response 

C-weighted., slow response* 

Only if approved by the Administrator. 

134 peak 

133 peak 

129 peak 

105 peakdBC 

At the request of the Administrator, the operator shall conduct periodic monitoring to ensure compliance 

with the airblast standards. The Administrator may request copies of complaints when blasting in sensitive areas, 

and in areas where there is reason to believe airblast limits may be exceeded. The measuring systems shall have a 

upper-end flat frequency response of at least 200 Hz. 

MPVIII-4.6 Peak Particle Velocity Limitations 

Maximum peak particle velocity applicable when seismograph records are provided for each blast: 

Distance (D) from the Blasting Site 

in Feet 

0 to 300 

301 to 5,000 

5,001 and beyond 

'Maximum allowable peak particle 

velocity (vmax) for ground vibration 

in inches/seconds 1 

1.25 

1.00 

0.75 

2Scaled distance factor to be applied 

without seismic monitoring 

50 

55 

65 

Ground vibration shall be measured as the particle velocity .. Particle velocity shall be recorded in three mutually 

perpendicular directions. The maximum allowable peak particle velocity shall apply to each of the three 

measurements. 

2Applicable to the scaled-distance equation of the following paragraph. 

An operator may use the scaled-distance equation, W=(D/Ds)2, to determine the allowable charge weight of 

explosives that can be detonated in any 8 millisecond period without seismic monitoring (where W = the maximum 

weight of explosives, in pounds; D = the distance, in feet, from the blasting site to the nearest protected structure; 

and Ds = the scaled-distance factor, which may initially be approved by the Administrator using the values for 

scaled distance factor listed in the above paragraph). 
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trees planted will be replaced. Planting locations 

and win be near the existing trees and drainage. 

RPVIH-5.4 Protection of Seeded Areas 

be selected to best ensure survwal 

All seeded areas may be fenced if deemed necessary based upon land uses at time 

of reclamation. necessary, noxious weeds be sprayed and eliminated as much 

as feasible. The decision to aHow grazing when vegetation has been established 

be made by the LQD, Mountain Cement and the landowner. The fence be 

constructed according to WDEQ/LQD Guideline No. l 0, Type UL Fences will be 

maintained two years or longer depending on vegetation stand establishment. 

RPVIII-5.5 Access Road Reclamation 

The access roads will be reclaimed unless otherwise agreed to by the property owner 

(State of Wyoming). This includes re-contouring, topsoil replacement, scarifying, 

seeding, and mulching. 

RPVIH-6.0 Reclamation Schedule 

Reclamation activities will be completed within approximately 2 years after 

mining is completed in limestone Area C mining area . 

. 0 Reclamation Costs 

Mountain Cement estimates that no more than 9.0 acres will be disturbed at any one time. 

Reclamation areas will require overburden replacement, re-contouring, topsoil 

replacement, final grading, and seeding. Table RPVUI-4 includes the cost estimates for 

reclaiming 9. 0 acres of quarry disturbance. 
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MPVII-4.8.9 Surface Water and Groun.d Water Monitoring During Mining 

Ground water samples will be taken from the Proposed Monitoring Well (PMW) #1, adjacent to 

the active mine area (Map MPVIII-1). The monitoring well will be monitored quarterly, monitoring 

results will be submitted in the annual report. A baseline sample will be obtained for the new well prior 

to mining. Also, baseline analysis the physical and chemical characteristics the local ground water 

has been completed from Soldier Springs No. 2 (P45893W) (see Appendix DVIH6-Hydrology). The 

analysis includes testing for hardness, alkalinity, nitrate, 

recording ground water levels. 

MPVIU-4.9 Public Nuisance and Safety 

hydrocarbons, conductivity and 

This operation should not adversely impact human or other environmental resources. Trucks will 

generally be operated on a continuous time schedule, and hauling will take place seven days a week 

because the main processing plant operates on a 24-hour per day, 7 day per week schedule. Current 

production estimates require a minimum of 60 uuckloads per day, but this could change if process 

modifications require more limestone. Private vehicle traffic should be minimal. 

When excavated, the pit will be approximately 8 to 15 feet below the current ground surface 

(minimum). The pit area will negate the affects of daytime blasting. 

The effects of dust created by crushing and hauling activities on nearby residences will be 

minimized to the maximum extent practicable by the use of dust suppressants (e.g. water, magnesium 

chloride). The effects of dust caused by blasting will be minimized by coordinated all blasts with climatic 

conditions to mitigate the migration of dust to residences (to the extent practicable). 

During nighttime operations MCC will avoid shining stationary light plants on homes to the 

north and northwest. 

MPVIII -4.10 Archaeological and Paleontological Resources 

Archaeological or paleontological resources have not been observed within the Area C Limestone 

Quarry area. Any unanticipated archaeological or paleontological resources encountered will be 

immediately reported to the appropriate state and federal agencies. 

Permit 298C-A7 NE'l4NEY4 
Section 36 Area C LS Quarry 
Revised: October 29, 2007 

MPVHl-14 

TFN 4 2/220 
Approved: ___ _ 
Change No .. ___ _ 



PAGE 78
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Office of the Attorney General 
Governor 
Dave Freudenthal 

Attorney General 
Patrick ], Crank 

Mr, Philip A, Nicolas 

Water and Natural Resources Division 
J 23 State Capitol 

Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 
(307) 777-6946 Telephone 

(307) 777-3542 Fax 

December 15,2005 

Chief Deputy Attorney General 
Elizabeth C, Gagen 

Deputy Attorney General 
Jay A, Jerde 

Anthony, Nicolas, Tangeman & Yates, LLC 
P,O, Box 928 
Laramie, WY 82073-0928 

RE: Mountain Cement Company, Permit 298C- Notice of Violation, Docket 
No. 3488-033514-03 

Dear Mr, Nicolas: 

Enclosed please find a fully executed copy of the Settlement Agreement for your 
client's files in the above referenced matter, 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me or John 
Burbridge at (307) 777-6946, 

Sincerely, 
' 

Shirley Ely 
Paralegal to John Burbridge 
Wyoming Attorney General's Oftlcc 

Enclosure 
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

The Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division 
("DEQ/LQD"), Herschler Building, 122 West 25'h Street, Cheyenne, WY 82002, and 
Mountain Cement Company ("Mountain Cement"), 5 Sand Creek Road, Laramie, 
Wyoming 82070 enter into this Settlement Agreement ("Agreement") to fully and finally 
resolve without litigation the violation cited in DEQ Notice of Violation Docket No. 
3488-03 ("NOV"). The NOV alleges that Mountain Cement failed to keep land 
disurbances within the buffer zone of Cottonwood Creek, failed to keep maintained an 
alternative sediment control structure north of the channel of Cottonwood Creek, failed to 
minimize erosion, using a groundwater well for water monitoring that was not in 
compliance with it permit and constructing a diversion ditch without securing prior design 
approval from theDEQ/LQD, all in violation of the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act 
("Act"), applicable Wyoming Land Quality Non-Coal Rules and Regulations ("NCRR") 
and permit 298C. 

WYO. STAT. ANN. § 35-11-901(a)(ii) authorizes stipulated settlement, including 
payment of a penalty, in lieu of litigation. To that end, Mountain Cement and the 
DEQ/LQD hereby stipulate and agree as follows: 

I. The DEQ/LQD is responsible for enforcing the Act, the NCRR, and permit 
298C. 

2. WYO. STAT. ANN. § 35-11-801 states in part, "In granting permits, the director 
may impose such conditions as may be necessary to accomplish the purpose of this act 
which are not inconsistent with the existing rules, regulations and standards." 

3. On or about March 26, 1975, DEQ/LQD issued permit 298C to Mountain 
Cement. 

4. Failing to comply with permit conditions is a violation of WYO. STAT. ANN. § 
35-11-415(a) which states, "Every operator to whom any permit or license is issued shall 
comply with all requirements of this act, the rules and regulations promulgated hereunder, 
and reclamation plans and other terms and conditions of any permit or license." 

5. On April 30, 2003, DEQ/LQD inspectors Clay Kimmi, Christine Mielnicki, Bill 
Hogg, Steve Ingle, and Rick Vincent inspected the mining operation authorized under 
permit 298C and discovered several violations. 

6. Mountain Cement failed to comply with permit 298C, condition Map MP-1 
which shows the present and future mining area as not encroaching into the Cottonwood 
Creek Drainage. Map MP-1 shows the buffer zone as being l 00 feet from the edge of the 

Settlement Agreement between DEQ/LQD and Mountain Cement Company 
DEQ NOV #3488-03 
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drainage where the banks of the drainage can be defined and 200 feet from the flow line 
where the banks can not be defined. The buffer zone is defined physically by visible steel 
posts at the mining site. Mining within the buffer zone is a condition of permit 298C. 

7. Mountain Cement failed to properly maintain a hay bale check dam located 
north of the channel of Cottonwood Creek resulting in the release of a significant amount 
of sediment into the stream in violation of permit condition MP 3.4 of permit 298C which 
states: "Ditches, berms, and ASCMs will be used to prevent sediment from leaving the 
disturbed area." 

8. Mountain Cement used a ground water well known as the "Heggie Well" for 
groundwater monitoring in violation of permit condition MP VII 4.5.9 which states: 
"groundwater samples will be obtained from the closest down gradient well from each 
active mine area provided permission is obtained from the owners of the wells." The 
"Heggie Well" is not the closest well to the active mining area in the Warren Pit and 
Mountain Cement is therefor not in compliance with permit 298C. 

9. Mountain Cement failed to control runoff and to mm1m1ze erosion, 
sedimentation, and flooding through regular maintenance on Section 24 Piper Quarry 
Haul Road in violation ofNCRR, Chapter 3, Section 2(i)(iii) and (i)(vi). 

10. Mountain Cement constructed a temporary diversion ditch north of 
Cottonwood Creek without prior approval of the ditch design by LQD staff in violation of 
NCRR, Chapter 3, Section 2(e)(ii). 

II. DEQ!LQD and Mountain Cement agree that Mountain Cement will pay the 
DEQ/LQD seven thousand five hundred dollars and no cents ($7,500.00) as a stipulated 
cash settlement to resolve these alleged violations in lieu of litigation under WYO. STAT. 
ANN. § 35-ll-90l(a)(ii). Mountain Cement shall make full payment by check, made 
payable to the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division, 
within thirty days after Mountain Cement has been notified by DEQILQD that the final 
signature has been affixed to this Agreement. Mountain Cement shall mail the payment 
to John S. Burbridge, Senior Assistant Attorney General, 123 Capitol Building, 
Cheyenne, WY 82002. 

12. Full compliance with this signed Agreement shall constitute full satisfaction 
for all claims by the DEQILQD against Mountain Cement based on NOV Docket No. 
3488-03, and solely in reliance on this Agreement, the DEQ!LQD will refrain from taking 
further enforcement action against Mountain Cement for these particular violations. 

13. Mountain Cement waives any statute of limitations which may apply to an 
enforcement action by the DEQILQD involving the specific matters described in NOV 

Settlement Agreement between DEQ/LQD and Mountain Cement Company 
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Docket No. 3488-03 in the event that Mountain Cement fails to fulfill its obligations 
under this Agreement. 

14. This Agreement shall be admissible by either Mountain Cement or DEQ!LQD 
(hereinafter Mountain Cement and DEQILQD may be referred to individually as "Party" 
and collectively as "Parties") without objection by the other Party in any action between 
these Parties relating to the violations alleged herein; provided, however, that nothing 
herein constitutes an admission by Mountain Cement of liability or fault. 

15. Neither Party hereto shall have any claim against the other for attorneys' fees 
or other costs incurred with the allegations resolved hereby, including costs incurred in 
the preparation of this Agreement. Each Party shall bear its own attorney fees and costs, 
if any, incurred through the date this Agreement is signed by both Parties. Each party 
assumes the risk of any liability arising from its own conduct. Neither party agrees to 
insure, defend or indemnifY the other. 

16. Any changes, modifications, revisiOns or amendments to this Agreement 
which are mutually agreed upon by the Parties shall be incorporated by written 
instrument, executed and signed by all Parties to this Agreement. 

17. The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Wyoming. The Courts of the State of Wyoming 
shall have jurisdiction over this Agreement and the Parties, and the venue shall be the 
First Judicial District, Laramie County, Wyoming. 

18. This Agreement, consisting of four ( 4) pages represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations, and agreements, whether written or oral. 

19. The State of Wyoming and the DEQ!LQD do not waive sovereign immunity 
by entering into this Agreement and specifically retain immunity and all defenses 
available to them as sovereigns pursuant to WYO. STAT. ANN.§ l-39-104(a) and all other 
state law. 

20. The Parties do not intend to create in any other individual or entity the status 
of third party beneficiary, and this Agreement shall not be construed so as to create such 
status. The rights, duties and obligations contained in this Agreement shall operate only 
between the Parties to this Agreement, and shall inure solely to the benefit of the Parties 
to this Agreement. The Parties to this Agreement intend and expressly agree that only 
Parties signatory to this Agreement shall have any legal or equitable right to seek to 
enforce this Agreement, to seek any remedy arising out of a Party's performance or 
failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement, or to bring an action for the 

Settlement Agreement between DEQ/LQD and Mountain Cement Company 
DEQ NOV #3488-03 

September 2005 
3 of4 



PAGE 83

' . . ('' 

breach of this Agreement. 

21. Each Party represents that they are authorized to enter into this Agreement and 
agree to be bound hereby. This Agreement shall become binding upon the Parties once 
executed by all Parties. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties, by their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Agreement on the days and dates set out below, and certify that they 
have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this Agreement: 

By: ~ 
.,,.11· s"'~ tfl laJlltlft:SlHg Date 
STU<wl--"i'ouL.rwso,J 

APPJ3..0VAL AS TO FORM:\ 

~\-(? N_,e-L\"" 
Philip A. Nicholas 
Attorney for Mountain Cement 

STATE OF WYOMING, DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

By: 

By: 
Joh 

c) C9dL o:s:-­
Date 

/'0 /2 r). s­
Dat~ 

APPROVAL AS TO FORM: 

Jf(.{fi!{{j 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
Attorney for DEQ/LQD 

112·/ci ·0'0" 
Date 

Settlement Agreement between DEQ/LQD and Mountain Cement Company 
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Department of Environmental Quality ~ 
To protect. conserve and enhance the quality of Wyoming's 

environment for the benefit of current and future generations. 

Dave Freudenthal, Governor .lotYI Carra, Director 

November 22, 2006 

Mr. Brian Waitkus 
Box 1411 
Laramie, WY 82073 

RE: Citizens Complaint Letter, Mountain Cement Company for fueling "ithi:n the 
Etcbepare 7 Quarry, Permit 298C and TFN 4 6/319 

Dear Mr. Waitkus: 

The Land Quality Division (LQD) received your letter on November 14, 2006 concerning the 
fueling of equipment within the Etchepare 7 pit area by Mountain Cement Company (MCC) 
within Permit 298C. After discussing this activity with representatives of the company and 
conducting a field investigation on November 15, 2006, MCC has been required to submit a 
permit revision. This permit revision will address inconsistencies within the permit and will 
further address protection of the aquifer. We will contact the City ofLaramie to discuss these 
changes with them.· Attached is a report of our investigation. 

Thank you for letter. If you have any other concerns or question concerning this issue, please 
contact Bill Hogg at 307-777-7057 or me at 307-777-7052. 

Sincerely, 

o!~ k-~ 
Lowell K. Spackman 
District I Supervisor 
Land Quality 

c: Monte Buchanan 
Phil Nicholas 
Bill Hogg 

Herschler Building • 122 West 25th Street • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 • http://deg.state.wy.us 
ADMIN/OUTREACH 
(307) 777-nsa 
FAX 777-3610 

ABANDONED MINES 
(307) 777-6145 
FAX 777-6462 

AIROUAUTY 
(307) 777-7391 
FAX777·5616 

INDUSTRIAL SITING 
(307) 777-7368 
FAX 777-6937 

LAND QUALITY 
(307)777-nss 
FAX 777·5864 

SOUD & HAZ. WASTE 
(307) 777-7752 
FAX777·5973 

WATER OUAUTY 
(307)777-n81 
FAX 7n-5973 

I 
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PERMIT: 

INSPECTORS: 

Complaint Inspection Report 

298C, Mountain Cement Company (MCC), 
Etchepare Pit (resulting in TFN 4 6/319) 

Steve Ingle and Lowell Spackman, Land Quality 
Division (LQD) 

COMPANY REPRESENTATIVES: Stuart Tomlinson, Tom Del Vecchio, Phil Nicholas, 
Steve Cooley, Michele Buckler 

DATE OF INSPECTION: November 15, 2006 

DATE OF REPORT: ~ovember 20, 2006 

Steve Ingle and Lowell Spackman investigated Mr. Waitkus' complaint on November 15, 
2006 that Mountain Cement Company (MCC) had been fueling in the Etchepare 7 
Quarry. In his complaint letter of November 6, 2006, he states that this fueling is against 
the agreement to not fuel in the quarry area. It wasn't clear if"the agreement" that he 
referred to was in reference to his agreement with MCC. The original agreement, dated 
January 11, 2004, was rescinded with the "Stipulated Resolution to Objections" that was 
signed on October 16, 2006 by Mr. Waitkus and Mr. Phil Nicholas. This resolution states 
nothing related to fueling. 

The currently approved permit states that "All fueling will occur in the designated area 
(shown on Map MPVII-3) to reduce potential impacts to the Casper Aquifer''; page 
MPVII-5A; the parenthetical phase was added. However, earlier in the same paragraph it 
states that the designated fueling area is for parking and fueling of mobile equipment. 
Crushers, screens, and track equipment such as the drill-rig are generally not considered 
to be mobile equipment. It is not clearly stated in the approved permit that fueling of 
"non-mobile" equipment will be done only within the designated area. These 
inconsistencies in the permit make it difficult to enforce where fueling is ailowed. 

Although MCC was fueling the drilling-rig and screen outside of the approved designated 
area, they used Best Management Practices to limit the potential for spills. Therefore, 
potential impacts to the Casper Aquifer were minimized. 

As a result of our investigation, MCC has been required to submit a revision to the 
Etchepare permit area. The revision was submitted the afternoon of the field 
investigation. The proposal is currently under review and will change as a result of this 
review. This initial revision proposes to locate designated refueling areas as the quarry 
advances as specified below: 

1. The fueling areas will be constructed to accommodate the largest mobile 
equipment; 

2. These areas will be placed in appropriate locations and covered with 6-mil plastic; 
3. A layer (of specified thickness) of shale will be placed upon the plastic; 
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Jtplaint Report 
~ovember 15, 2006 

Page 2 of2 

4. Berms will be used around each area to prevent contamination outside the 
refueling area; and 

5. A spill kit will be located in each refueling area. 

The Land Quality Division {LQD) should also require the fuel tanks to be double walled. 
Addition alterations to the proposal will be necessary before approval. The measures that 
will be approved will meet or exceed the Best Management Practices for fueling and fuel 
storage. 

MCC has stopped fueling operations of equipment. other than the screen. outside t:he 
designated areas until the revision is approved. The fuel tank for the screen has been 
placed within a berm and protected with underlying plastic (Photo No.1). 

MCC has been required to modify their permit as a result of this investigation as stated 
above. This revision will not require public notice because the currently approved permit 
had already addressed aquifer protection. This proposal changes some of the procedures 
and specifics for protecting the aquifer, however, the Administrator felt that Public 
Notice was previously provided showing that MCC is mining in this area. Nevertheless, 
LQD and MCC will contact the City of Laramie to discuss the changes in MCC's mine 
plan. 

Photo 1: Fuel tank used for the screen that is located in a bermed area with a plastic liner. MCC has been 
asked to increase the size of the berm on the right provide added protection. 

I 
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J\«lUNTAIN CEMENT COMPANY 
MOUNTAIN 
CEMENT COMPANY 

Mr. William Hogg 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Land Quality Division 
Herschler Building 
122 West 25th Street 
Cheyenne, VVY 82002 

RE: Permit 298c; 

February 8, 2007 

Portable Crusher/Screener & Equipment Fueling Operations Permit Revision 

Dear Mr. Hogg: 

Submitted for your review is a modified/revised mine plan text to address MCC's Mine Plan. The 
modification clarifies the crushing issue and equipment fuel operation. Please note that the SWPPP 
section (Appendix MPVIID) was updated and revised. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at Mountain Cement by email 
(scooley@mountaincement.com), or by phone at (307)745-4879 ext. 121. 

Steve Cooley 
Environmental Manager 

5 Sand Creek Road Laramie, WY 82070 (307) 745-4879 (307) 742-4534 FAX www.mountaincement.net 
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INDEX SHEET FOR MINE PERMIT AMENDMENTS OR REVISIONS Page 1 ofl 
February 8, 2007 
TFN 

MINE COMPANY NAME: Mountain Cement Company MINE NAME: Etchepare Limestone Quarry PERMIT NO. 298C-A5 

Statement: I, Steve Cooley , an authorized representative of Mountain Cement Company declare that only the items listed on this and all consecutively 
numbered Index Sheets are intended as revisions to the current permit document. In the event tha:!,flt~~r changes inadvertently occurred due to this 
revision, those unintentional alterations will not be considered approved. Please initial and date. ':l~, z · ,;;v7 

NOTES: I) Include all revision or change elements and a brief description of or reason for each revision element. / 
2) List all revision or change elements in sequence by volume number; number index sheets sequentially as needed. 

Description: Portable Crusher/Screener & Equipment Fueling Operations Revision 

VOLUME 
NUMBER 

Application for Permit 
to Mine 

Application for Permit 
to Mine 

Application for Permit 
to Mine 

PAGE, MAP OR OTHER PAGE, MAP OR OTHER 

PERMIT ENTRY TO BE PERMIT ENTRY TO BE 

REMOVED ADDED 

MPVII-i, MPVII-
MPVII-i, MPVII-ii 

ii 

MPVII-3, MPVII-
5, MPVII-5A, 

MPVII-3, MPVII-5, MPVII-5A, MPVII-
MPVII-5B, 
MPVII-12, 

5B, MPVII-12, MPVII-14 

MPVII-14 

MPVII-59 thru 
MPVII-59 thru MPVII thru MPVII-71 

MPVII-71 

Index Sheet for LQD Pennitting Changes 
Updates: SF21RV 7/95; RC 9/99; RC 09/00 

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE 

Replace TOC with revised Table of Contents (TOC). 

Replace MPVII pages in the mine plan with revised pages in the 
mine plan. 

Replace Title Page and entire contents of Appendix MPVIID 
(SWPP). 
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MPVII2.4 Nature of Ore Reserve

 The mine sites and limestone resources are generally considered to be within the Casper 

Formation.  The limestone consists of relatively thin seams between 0 and 18 feet thick.  

 Overburden thickness, overlying the limestone, generally ranges from 0 to 5 feet thick.  

However, the overburden thickness may reach 20 feet in isolated areas.  These quarry sections 

generally have less than 2 feet, on average, of overburden and the limestone beds rest on sandstone.  

Limestone will be extracted as described in section MPVII4.0.  During this extraction, a wall 

approximately 5 to 25 feet high will exist at the mining front as mining progresses.  This wall will 

continually move as material is mined and may be benched if wall instability becomes a factor.  The 

total amount of ore resource anticipated for mining is approximately 9.03 million tons within the 

affected area boundaries. 

 

MPVII2.5 Other Minerals or Claims

 There are no identified deposits of other minerals within the amendment area, and no other 

mineral claims exist within the amendment area. 

 

MPVII3.0   Description of Operation

MPVII3.1 Facilities

 Facilities will not be required on site as they are already existing at Mountain Cement 

Company's plant south of Laramie.  A portable crusher/screening plant and associated power 

generation will be periodically located and operated at the site to process the limestone.  This 

equipment may be relocated several times within each individual disturbed section as the mining 

progresses.
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MPVII3.4 Solid Waste Management

 Solid waste will not be produced at the site so disposal facilities will not be required.  Any 

waste material from equipment or other sources will be removed from the site and managed 

properly. 

 A rented portable toilet will be maintained at the site at all times.  This will be serviced by 

the supply vender. 

MPVII3.5 Railroads or Other Facilities

 There will be no permanent facilities at the site.  Limestone materials may be processed by a 

portable crusher and/or screening plant, with associated power generation.  At least one utility/tool 

trailer will be on site during operations. 

 The blasting contractor will occasionally maintain a powder magazine at the site. 

MPVII3.6 Mineral Storage and Stockpile Sites

 The limestone will generally be stockpiled in the lower end of each affected area section, but 

away from any sediment control devices such as sediment ponds.  Topsoil and overburden will be 

stockpiled for later replacement during reclamation activities.  The projected locations of these 

stockpiles are shown on Map MPVII-1.  Actual existing and projected overburden and topsoil 

stockpile locations will be shown in more detail in the annual mine reports.  Overburden stockpiles 

will be placed between the quarry and the nearest residences if feasible. If overburden is placed 

outside of the pit, topsoil will be stripped prior to placement. 
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MPVII3.7 Access Control Features

 The site will not present a hazard to the public or animals.  Lockable gates will be installed 

at all access points.  Line of site permit markers will be erected to delineate the amendment areas.  

Existing livestock fencing will remain except in areas where mining will occur.  The relatively low 

population density and the fencing will also assist in limiting public access. 

 Signs will be posted at all entrances with warnings describing site activity and restricting 

access to authorized personnel only.  All new fencing will be placed as needed to protect livestock, 

wildlife, and humans from hazardous operations per LQD Guideline 10, “Fencing”, Type 3. 

 

Section MPVII3.8 Equipment Parking and Fueling Area
 
 The Etchepare limestone quarry is within an area identified by the City of Laramie and 

Albany County as the Casper Aquifer recharge area (see Map DVII6-1a and Map MPVII-3).  

MCC will employ Best Management Practices (BMP) to prevent adverse impacts to the Casper 

Aquifer.  Areas will be  designated away from the mine pits and blasting areas (see MAP VII-3) 

for the blasting magazines, rented portable toilet, and storage shed containing equipment, tools, 

oil drums and anti-freeze drums.  A portable fuel tank may be located at the designated area(s) 

for fueling equipment shown on the list below.  Impermeable liners and berms will be used 

around any such fuel tank to prevent contamination of groundwater. 

Mobile and track equipment used in the limestone mining process (including, but not limited 

to trucks, backhoes, loaders, bull-dozers, drill-rig(s), scrapers, etc.) are refueled via tanker trucks 

in designated fueling areas.  These designated areas will move as necessitated by quarry 

operations. (MCC will provide a map showing the location of these designated refueling areas 

with its annual report).  While fueling, a catch-pan/bucket will be utilized to catch any drips or 

spills.  A spill kit will be located adjacent to all refueling areas to mitigate small spills. Each 

designated fueling area will be constructed as follows: 

1. The refueling area will be large enough to accommodate a fuel tanker truck and the 
single largest mobile equipment to be used in the quarry; 

 
2. The refueling area will be on an unfractured limestone bench near the mining face 

and will be covered with a minimum of 6-mil plastic and shale or fine sand; 
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3. A layer of shale of sufficient thickness to prevent damage to the 6-mil plastic liner 
will be placed on the plastic; 

 
4. A spill kit will be located in the refueling area; 

 
5. A berm built of fine grained material that will prevent punctures of the liner will be 

constructed in a U-shaped configuration on the down-gradient side of the refueling 
area, and will consist of fine-grained quarry overburden or other appropriate material 
as determined by MCC.  The berm will be sized in such a way as to contain the 
maximum possible spill;  

 
6. Appropriate signage will be placed in the refueling area;  and 

 
7. Each designated refueling area will be certified by a qualified individual as to 

suitability.  
 

Portable crusher/screening plants are powered by diesel or gasoline fired generators.  These 

generators generally have an in-line primary fuel tank which will be located on a plastic liner. 

MCC will construct secondary containment consisting of a plastic-lined berm designed to 

contain the full contents of any such in-line fuel tank or other fuel storage units. The generator 

will be refueled by tanker truck as necessary.  While fueling, a catch-pan/bucket will be utilized 

to catch any drips or spills. 

General equipment maintenance will be done at the plant.  However, if minor or 

emergency repairs are necessary at this area, a drop cloth will be used to catch potential 

contaminants. 

Spill kits are located adjacent to all refueling areas, and contain a shovel, absorbents and 

disposal bags.  Spills will be mitigated immediately utilizing mobile equipment (i.e. backhoes, 

loaders, haul trucks, etc.).  Small spills will be mitigated using the spill kits.  All contaminated 

material will be transported off-site and disposed of in accordance with applicable state, federal, 

and local laws. 

All seams in plastic liners will be installed in such a manner that they will not be 

contaminant pathways.  When a designated fueling area is decommissioned any underlying 

material and plastic liners will be properly disposed of or be decontaminated prior to reuse. 
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Aquifer below the affected areas ranges from 50 to over 300 feet.  The water quality from drainages 

will not be detectably affected by mining operations.  Affected water will be either detained to allow 

the sediment to settle or impounded in stormwater ponding areas.  Leaks and spills occurring during 

mine activities will be addressed immediately.  MCC has an approved Spill Prevention, Control & 

Countermeasure (SPCC) plan generalized for all of MCC’s operations (e.g. mining); a Stormwater 

Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for this quarry, and employs BMP’s to prevent impacts.   MCC 

will utilize equipment to respond and control spills and leaks in the immediate area and dispose of 

any affected material.  The spill will be contained in the immediate area to prevent further spreading 

(i.e. berms).  Absorbents (i.e. dust, dirt, commercial absorbents) will be utilized to absorb excessive 

fluids.  Any material affected by the spill or leak will be transferred to the plant.  When fueling 

occurs in the fuel/parking area for mobile equipment, refer to the previous section MPVII3.8, 

“Equipment, Material Storage, and Fueling Operations”, for further details of prevention and 

mitigation of spills.  Appendix MPVIID, “Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),” also 

contains practices that MCC will use to reduce impacts to water resources in the Etchepare 

Quarry. 

 Surface water runoff will be minimally affected by mining operations due to sediment 

control measures associated with the ponding areas and rock check dams.  The maximum reduction 

in watershed area due to all mining sections is limited to less than 0.04% of the entire Laramie River 

watershed upstream from the Little Laramie River and less than 8.3% of any individual watershed 

within the amendment area with a second order stream or greater.  Ground water infiltration to the 

underlying aquifer will have an incremental but undetectable increase in recharge due to the 

temporary sediment control ponds. 

 Both the physical (sediment) and chemical (water quality) surface water baseline 

characteristics have been evaluated and are listed in Table DVII6-1. 
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MPVII4.6 Public Nuisance and Safety

 This operation will not adversely impact human or other environmental resources.  Trucks 

will be operated on a continuous time schedule, and hauling will take place seven days a week 

because the main processing plant operates on a 24-hour per day, 7 day per week schedule.  See 

section 3.8 on access control features.  Current production estimates require a minimum of 60 

truckloads per day, but this could change if process modifications require more limestone.  Private 

vehicle traffic will be minimal. 

 Mountain Cement Company will attempt to minimize nighttime crushing, screening, and 

power generation operations.  Nighttime activities will not occur until a pit is constructed to contain 

and shield mining equipment.  Mountain Cement Company shall not use any light plants during 

night operations until it has first mined limestone and relocated its crusher and lights in the pit 

created from mining.  During nighttime operation MCC will avoid shining stationary light plants on 

homes to the west and northwest.  MCC operators will also use their best effort to avoid shining the 

lights of mobile equipment on homes. 

 When excavated, the pit will be approximately 8 to 15 feet below the current ground 

surface, and the topsoil and overburden stockpiles will be placed in such a way as to minimize or 

negate the affects of nighttime operations and will also assist in minimizing the affects of daytime 

blasting. 

 The effects of dust created by crushing, screening, and hauling activities on nearby 

residences will be minimized to the maximum extent possible by the use of dust suppressants 

(magnesium chloride).  The effects of dust caused by blasting will be minimized by coordinating all 

blasts with optimum climatic conditions to mitigate the migration of dust to residences. 
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APPENDIX MPVIID 
 

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN 
(SWPPP)
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SECTION I 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
The Piper Limestone Quarry is located approximately three miles southeast of Laramie, 
Wyoming.  The Piper Quarry, the Warren Quarry and the Etchepare Quarry have been 
consolidated into one permit per the request of the Wyoming Department of 
Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division.  These quarries lie adjacent to each other 
and will hereafter be referred to as the Piper Quarry.  Mountain Cement Company will 
extract approximately 500,000 tons of limestone from these quarry pits each year.  
Limestone is a raw material used in the manufacturing of cement. The amount of material 
removed annually and; thereby, the life of the quarry will be dependent on economic 
conditions and the cement market.  
 
The Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) describes practices and procedures 
for preventing stormwater and snowmelt runoff from being contaminated.  The plan 
fulfills the requirements of Appendix B of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES).  Potential contaminants from these quarries include suspended 
sediment, limestone, and vehicular fluids. 
 
 
 

SECTION II 
 

POLLUTION PREVENTION TEAM 
 
The employee responsible for environmental compliance at the MCC plant and quarries 
is: 
 

Environmental Manager 
Mountain Cement Company 
5 Sand Creek Road 
Laramie, Wyoming   82070 
(307) 745-4879 

 
The Environmental Manager at the MCC facility is the SWPPP Team Leader for the 
quarry and is the contact person for the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality 
(WDEQ).  The Team Leader will implement the SWPPP developed in this document.  
The Environmental Manager must have a thorough knowledge of the Piper Limestone 
Quarry including site layout and operation.  The Environmental Manager’s current 
responsibilities include an understanding of the environmental requirements of the MCC 
plant and affiliated operations. 
 
The Environmental Manager, or his designee, will perform quarterly inspections of all the 
pollution control structures and activities associated with the quarry’s SWPPP, and will 
also be responsible for revising the SWPPP to accommodate growth of operational 
changes at the quarry.  The Environmental Manager will keep all records, submit all 
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reports, and coordinate employee training.  The records documenting all applicable 
testing and monitoring results and a copy of the SWPPP will be available for inspection 
by WDEQ personnel at the plant.  Certification of this report will be done by the MCC 
Plant Manager. 
 
Mountain Cement Company is committed to providing the Environmental Manager and 
other appropriate personnel with continuing classroom and field training recommended or 
required by the WDEQ.  If the Environmental Manager cannot fulfill all obligations 
under this SWPPP due to organizational changes within the company or for any other 
reasons, MCC will designate a new SWPPP Team Leader within six (6) months. 
 
   

SECTION III 
 

DESCRIPTION OF POTENTIAL POLLUTION SOURCES 
 
Limestone is mined at the Piper Quarry for the manufacture of Portland cement.  The 
limestone is mined, crushed, and screened to an appropriate size and stockpiled until 
ready to be hauled to the cement plant.  The crushed rock is transported to the plant as 
needed for the production of cement.  The Piper Quarry is currently one of two quarries 
actively being mined for its limestone reserves. 
 
The potential pollution sources for the Piper Quarry are suspended sediment from the 
disturbed area and fuel, oil, hydraulic fluids, or antifreeze spills from equipment used in 
the quarry.   
 
The primary method to control and minimize sediment runoff from the mine site will 
involve diverting water into stormwater ponding areas where sediment will be allowed to 
settle.  These ponds will be capable of retaining design stormwater quantities as required 
by the Land Quality Division’s Guideline No. 13.  Natural low areas and highwalls will 
be utilized to impound all surface water.  Drainage ditches will also be used to funnel 
water away from the active pit if deemed necessary.  Check dams or hay bales will be 
placed strategically in the ditches to reduce the amount of sediment in the discharged 
water.   
 
Topsoil will be stockpiled to form a barrier at the boundary of the disturbed area and 
along the access road.  This will reduce the possibility of suspended sediment migrating 
from the disturbed site.  All topsoil stockpiles will be surrounded by toe-ditches and 
revegetated to reduce the possibility of suspended sediment form the stockpiles 
contaminating the stormwater. 
 
Overburden stockpiles will also be used as a berm at the boundary of the disturbed area 
when needed and feasible.  This will further reduce migration of suspended sediment 
from leaving the disturbance area of the quarry.   
 
There is limited storage of diesel fuel at the quarry.  Secondary containment is provided 
for any storage of the diesel fuel, including utilizing a double-walled tank and lined 
containment area.  Mobile equipment is refueled via truck.  During mining activities, the 
necessary equipment is brought to the mine and used until the mining activities cease.  
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The equipment used in mining will then be removed.  The equipment necessary for 
reclaiming the site will be removed immediately following reclamation activities.   
 
An earthen berm of overburden will surround the disturbed area when needed to prevent 
contaminants from leaving the disturbed area with the stormwater runoff.  Ditches will be 
constructed on either side of the access road.  Sediment control such as check dams or 
hay bales will be placed inside ditches when necessary to reduce sediment loss from the 
disturbance site.   
 
 
 

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP) 
 
 
1. The stormwater ponding areas will be inspected quarterly to ensure the integrity 

of the impoundments. 
 

2. The berm(s) around the disturbed area will be inspected quarterly for breaks or 
undercuts. 
 

3. The ditches around topsoil stockpiles will be inspected quarterly for breaks or 
sediment buildup. 
 

4. The ditches along the access road will be inspected quarterly for breaks or 
sediment buildup.  The ditches will be revegetated to minimize erosion. 
 

5. During reclamation operations, berms will be constructed around the equipment 
parking area. 
 

6. Any fluids temporarily stored at the site will be situated inside secondary 
containment and will not be located near disturbance boundaries.  
 

7. Mobile equipment refueling activities are conducted only under direct 
supervision. 

8. Diesel fuel storage is only allowed in double-walled tanks placed in a lined 
containment area. 
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SECTION IV 
 

SITE MAP 
 
The site map of the Piper Limestone Quarry shows the future location of the stormwater 
ponds, the containment berms around the disturbed area, the toe-ditches around the 
topsoil stockpiles and the ditches along the access road.  All stormwater runoff from the 
disturbed area is retained within the quarry area.  Due to the nature of the screening 
operations, the diesel fuel storage tank will relocate as necessary to facilitate mining 
activities. 
 
 

 
SECTION V 

 
DRAINAGE 
 
Stormwater is limited to the disturbed area by a stormwater pond and a containment 
berm.  Toe-ditches surround the topsoil stockpiles preventing sediment from the 
stockpiles from contaminating runoff.  Runoff from the disturbed areas will be retained in 
the quarry pit.  Once mining activities cease in the quarry, the area will be reclaimed and 
erosion will be reduced to pre-disturbance levels. 
 
 
 

SECTION VI 
 

INVENTORY OF EXPOSED MATERIALS 
 
Topsoil, overburden and limestone will be stockpiled within the disturbance areas.  To 
minimize stormwater contamination, topsoil stockpiles are surrounded by toe-ditches.  
Topsoil is revegetated within one year of being stockpiled.  The sediment from the 
limestone stockpiles and the disturbed area is retained within the quarry pit by berms and 
sediment control devices. 
 
 

SECTION VII 
 

SPILLS AND LEAKS 
 
There have been no significant spills or leaks of toxic or hazardous pollutants at the Piper 
Limestone Quarry.  All spills and leaks will be immediately contained and cleaned up 
and reported to the Environmental Manager.  Appropriate agencies will be notified in the 
case of reportable spills or leaks and all incidents will be recorded and kept on file in the 
Environmental Manager’s office. 
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SECTION VIII 
 

SAMPLING DATA 
 
The NPDES Permit for the Piper Quarry does not require stormwater sampling.  MCC 
has not conducted any stormwater sampling at this site.   
 
 
 
 

SECTION IX 
 

RISK IDENTIFICATION AND SUMMARY OF 
POTENTIAL POLLUTION SOURCES 

 
All activities related to the Piper Limestone Quarry are confined to within the disturbance 
area or the containment ditches.  Toe-ditches and berms are constructed to control water 
runoff.  Equipment used at the quarry will be fueled, parked, and maintained using best 
management practices.  Therefore, the risk of pollution due to stormwater runoff is highly 
unlikely. 
 

 
SECTION X 

 
MEASURES AND CONTROLS 

 
1. Good housekeeping 
 
The Piper Limestone Quarry has a controlled stormwater discharge point.  Good 
housekeeping procedures include keeping all operations within the boundaries of the 
disturbed area.  Stockpiles and stormwater ponds will be removed or incorporated into 
the reclamation plan.  Post-mining surface water impoundments are not projected for the 
area. 
 
During mining operations and future reclamation activities: 
 
∞ Equipment maintenance, parking, and refueling will be kept within the 

boundaries of the disturbed area 
 

∞ Contaminated soil in the equipment parking areas will be removed and disposed 
of in a permitted landfill or incinerator. 
 

∞ Equipment will be brought to the quarry as needed for operations and 
reclamation tasks.  This equipment will be removed immediately following the 
completion of these activities. 
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2. Preventive Maintenance 
 
Quarry preventive maintenance practices involve quarterly inspection of the reclamation 
area containment berms for breaks, undercutting, and debris or sediment buildup.  The 
sediment control ditches will also be inspected for sediment buildup, obstructions, and 
debris. 
 
During mining operations and future reclamation activities: 
 
∞ All equipment will be routinely maintained to ensure proper operation. 

 
 
 

3. Spill Prevention and Response Procedures 
 
Diesel fuel is stored for generator refueling activities at the Piper Limestone Quarry.  
Operation and reclamation activities may potentially create small spills of fuel, oil, 
hydraulic fluids, or antifreeze onto the ground.  Contaminated soil will be disposed of in 
a permitted landfill or incinerator.  Quarry employees have been trained to quickly 
respond to any and all spills so the possibility of discharging any equipment fluids is 
highly unlikely. 
 
 
4. Inspections 
 
The SWPPP Team Leader will inspect the Piper Limestone Quarry a minimum of 
quarterly for compliance with the SWPPP.  The inspection will also track the progress of 
the SWPPP.  The results of the inspection and the progress of the SWPPP will be 
recorded and retained at the MCC Plant site with the SWPPP for a minimum of three 
years. 
 
After reclamation is complete, the Piper Quarry will be inspected yearly to ensure that 
soil erosion has stabilized and that sediment control structures and revegetation measures 
are effectively protecting stormwater runoff from the quarry.   
 
A Notice of Termination (Appendix 1) will be filed with the Wyoming Department of 
Environmental Quality, Water Quality Division after three yearly inspections with no 
evidence of sediment leaving the quarry disturbed area. 
 
5. Employee Training 
 
Employee training will occur once a year for all MCC employees working in MCC’s 
quarries.  The training sessions will include an overview of the Piper Limestone Quarry 
operation and the MCC Plant site.  The NPDES permits for the plant and the Piper 
Quarry will also be discussed.  The training session will also include: 
 
∞ The identity of the SWPPP Team Leader. 

 
∞ A list of potential stormwater pollution sources and their location at the Piper 

PAGE 105



MPVII-68 

Limestone Quarry. 
 

∞ Good housekeeping procedures discussed in Section X, Part 1 of the SWPPP 
will be presented.  The responsibilities of the employees regarding the SWPPP 
will be emphasized. 
 

∞ Preventive Maintenance Procedures discussed in Section X, Part 2 of the 
SWPPP will be discussed. The responsibilities of the employees regarding the 
SWPPP will be emphasized. 
 

∞ Inspections, monitoring and sampling plans for the Piper Limestone Quarry will 
be discussed. 
 
 

∞ The Best Management Practices described in the SWPPP for the quarry will be 
discussed. 
 

∞ Mountain Cement Company’s SWPPP implementation schedule and 
enforcement policy for the Piper Limestone Quarry will be discussed. 
 

6. Record Keeping and Internal Reporting Procedures 
 
The SWPPP Team Leader will make quarterly inspections of the Piper Limestone Quarry 
to ensure proper operation of the SWPPP.  Records will be kept at the MCC Plant with 
the SWPPP for the Piper Limestone Quarry. 
 
Activities recorded include: 
 
∞ Records of spills or leaks including the time, date, and weather conditions when 

the incident occurred. 
 

∞ Records of training sessions 
 

∞ Maintenance, repair, or construction of stormwater management structures. 
 

∞ Inspection findings and corrective actions required 
 

7. Non-Storm Discharges 
 
The drainage system at the Piper Limestone Quarry is above ground.  There are currently 
no non-storm discharge points at the quarry. 
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8. Sediment and Erosion Control 
 
The Piper Limestone Quarry will be surrounded by earthen berms to contain soil erosion 
and storm water runoff.  Sediment will be inhibited from migrating outside the quarry site 
by the stormwater ponds and rock check dams and/or hay bales in the drainage ditches.  
Toe-ditches will surround the topsoil stockpiles to prevent stormwater erosion.  Topsoil 
stockpiles will also be vegetated to inhibit erosion.  Quarry reclamation will also include 
revegetating the disturbed area.  The vegetation and reclamation plan will limit erosion 
from the Piper Limestone Quarry. 
 
9. Management of Runoff 
 
All stormwater runoff form the Piper Limestone Quarry will be retained within the 
disturbed area boundary using ponds, berms, ditches, and the natural site drainage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION XI 
 

COMPREHENSIVE SITE COMPLIANCE EVALUATION 
 
During the quarterly inspections of the Piper Limestone Quarry, the SWPPP Team 
Leader will evaluate the operation and effectiveness of the SWPPP.  The evaluation will 
determine if measures to contain stormwater runoff sediment within the disturbed area 
are adequate or if other stormwater runoff control is needed.  The inspection will also 
evaluate the condition of the SWPPP control measures.  The inspection will ensure that 
no sediment is escaping the control devices.  After reclamation, the inspections will 
determine if the erosion control structures and revegetation measures are adequate to 
prevent further erosion from the reclaimed area.  After the reclaimed area has stabilized, a 
Notice of Termination will be filed. 
 
A report summarizing any observations made by the inspector(s) will be signed by the 
inspector(s) and retained on file for at least three years.  The author of the report and the 
date and time of the inspection will also be recorded.  Any deficiencies or potential 
deficiencies will be corrected as soon as possible. 
 
 

SECTION XII 
 

CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER PLANS
 
This plan includes several Good Housekeeping Procedures and follows many of EPA’s 
Best Management Practices outlined in Stormwater Management for Industrial Activities.  
The SWPPP will include sediment control measures and slope stabilization techniques 
associated with the quarry reclamation plan. 
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NOTICE OF TERMINATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
The Notice of Termination shall include: 
 
1. The mailing address of the industrial site for which the notification is submitted.  

Where a mailing address is not available, the location of the approximate center 
of the site must be described in terms of the latitude and longitude to the nearest 
15 seconds, or the nearest section, township and range to the nearest quarter; 
 

2. The name, address and telephone number of the operator addressed by the Notice 
of Termination; 
 

3. The NPDES Permit number for the storm water discharge identified by the Notice 
of Termination; 
 

4. The indication of whether the stormwater discharges associated with the 
industrial activity have been eliminated or the operator of the discharges has 
changed; 
 

5. The following certification signed in accordance with the signatory requirements 
of this permit: 
 

  “I certify under penalty of law that all storm water discharges associated 
with industrial activity from the identified facility that are authorized by an 
NPDES general permit have been eliminated or that I am no longer the 
operator of the industrial activity.  I understand that by submitting this 
notice of termination that I am no longer authorized to discharge 
stormwater associated with industrial activity under this general permit 
and that discharging pollutants in storm water associated with industrial 
activity to waters of the United States is unlawful under the Clean Water 
Act where the discharge is not authorized by an NPDES permit.  I also 
understand that the submittal of the notice of termination does not release 
an operator from liability for any violations of this permit or the Clean 
Water Act.” 
 

 For the purposes of certification, elimination of storm water discharges  
associated with industrial activity means that all disturbed soils at the identified 
facility have been finally stabilized and temporary erosion and sediment control 
measures have been removed at an appropriate time, or that all storm water 
discharges associated with construction activities from the identified site that are 
authorized by a NPDES general permit have otherwise been eliminated. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

. ~ 

LORENZON, certify that at Cheyenne, Wyoming, on the ~I/ 'day 

of 1997, I served a copy of the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, 

C NC USIONS OF LAW AND ORDER by depositing copies of the same in the United 

States mail, postage prepaid, duly .,enveloped and addressed to: 

James Weger and 
Aleida Matthies 

916 Canby Street 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Edward J. Delaney and 
Mary R Delaney 

5200 Howe Lane 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Stuart B. Wohl 
1255 Fairfax Court 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33326 

Linda Blair & Family 
4948 Howe Lane 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Philip Nicholas (and also by fax) 
P. 0. Box 928 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Bill Brantz and 
Holly Brantz 

1565 N. 22nd 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Brian R Waitkus 
Box 1411 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Millard Johnson and 
Deanna Johnson, and 

Summit Estates Landowners Assoc. 
566 North 9th Street 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Richard Uren 
67 Eagle Nest Lane 
Laramie, WY 82070 

Dr. Bradley Walgren 
1413 Kearney 
Laramie, WY 82070 

and also to the following persons via interoffice mail: 

Dennis Hemmer, Director 
Department of Environmental Quality 
122 W. 25th Street, Herschler Building 
Cheyenne, WY 82002 

Rick Chancellor, Administrator 
Land Quality Division 
Department of Environmental Quality 
122 w; 25th Street, Herschler Bldg. 
Cheyenne, WY 82002 

1 0 

Thomas A Roan 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
Attorney General's Office 
123 Capitol Building 
Cheyenne, WY 82002 

Jwu,· f2-cA~~ 
TERRI A LORENZON 
Director I Attorney 
Environmental Quality Council 
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